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OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR
Hector H. Balderas

August 13,2008

SAO Ref. No. 6012
The Honorable Ronnie M. Torres, Mayor
City of Belen
100 S Main Street
Belen, NM 87002-3636

SUBJECT: Audit Report—City of Belen—2006-2007 Fiscal Year—Prepared by Hinkle & Landers,
PC

Your agency audit report was received by the Office of the State Auditor (Office) on April 1,2008. The
State Auditor examination of the audit report required by Section 12-6-14 (D), NMSA 1978, has been
completed. This letter is the authorization to make the final payment to the independent public
accountant (IPA) who contracted to perform the agency’s financial and compliance audit. In accordance
with the Section 2 (B) of the audit contract, the IPA will deliver the specified number of copies of the
audit to the agency.

As per your written request, this office is waiving the ten (10) day waiting period and is making the
report public record immediately. The audit report will be:

e released by the Office of the State Auditor to the Legislative Finance Committee, and the Department
of Finance and Administration; and

» presented by the agency to a quorum of the agency’s governing authority at a public meeting, for
approval, per Section 2.2.2.10.J.3)d) of 2.2.2 NMAC Requirements for Contracting and
Conducting Audits of Agencies.

The independent public accountant’s findings and comments are included in the audit report on pages 88
- 93. It is ultimately the responsibility of the governing authority of the agency to take corrective
action on all findings and comments.

CTOR H. BALDERAS
STATE AUDITOR

cc:  Legislative Finance Committee
Department of Finance and Administration-
Local Government Division
Hinkle & Landers, PC

2113 Warner Circle, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505-5499
(505) 476-3800 - (800) 432-5517 - Fax (505) 827-3512
WWW.sa0nm, org )






STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF BELEN
TABLE OF CONTENTS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2007
Official Roster
FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditors’ Report

Basic Financial Statements:

Government-Wide Statements:

Statement of Net Assets

Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures-Budget and Actual (Non GAAP Budgetary Basis)

General Fund

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures-Budget and Actual (Non GAAP Budgetary Basis)
—— Special Revenne —Infrastructure GRT 1/8%

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures-Budget and Actua) (Non GAAP Budgetary Basis)

——Special Revenue —Infrastructure GRT %%

Proprietary Funds

Balance Sheet

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Supplemental Information
Non major Special Revenue Fund Descriptions

Non-major Special Revenue Funds Combining Balance Sheet

Non-major Special Revenue Funds Combining Statement of Revenue Funds Combining
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-major Special Revenue Fund — Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget and
Actual (Non GAAP Budgetary Basis): '

Harvey Honse

Parks and Recreation

Fire Protection

EMS Rescue

Jai}{Corrections)

State Highway Section 5311

Ewvidence

Law Enforcement

JAG Grant

Lodgers’ Tax

Martin Luther King

o0 -} O\

10
11

12

13
14
15

16-38

39-40
41-42

4344

45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
TABLE OF CONTENTS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2007

RS.V.P

Payrodl Fund

Street Paving Revolving

Major Capital Project — Becker Avenue Enhancement

Non major Capitat Projects Fund Descriptions

Non-mazjor Capital Project Funds Combining Bafance Sheet

Non-major Capital Projects Funds Combining Statement of Revenucs, Expenditures and
Changes m Foad Balances

Major and Noi=major Capital Projects Fund - Statement of Revenues and Cxpenditures
Budgel and Actual (Non GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Mubltipurpose Rececation Park

Airport Project

Library Renovation

COBG Project

Non major Debt Service Fund Descriptions

Non-major Debt Service Funds Combining Balance Sheet ‘
Non major Debl Service Funds Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances

Non major Debt Service Fund Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget and Actual
(Non GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Debt Service Fund

Gas Tax Reveaue Bond

GRT Revenue Bond

Enterprise Fund Descriptions

Enterprise Fund Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget and Actual Non GAAP
Budgetary Basis)

Wastewater Department

Water Department

Meter Deposits

Solid Waste Department

Joint Utility Debt Service

Environmental Department Loan

Wastewater Collection System Improvements

Water Well #4

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Other Reports

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to each Major Program and Internal
Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

Summary of Findings and Questioned Costs

Financial Statement Preparation and Exit Conference

i1

56
57
58
59
60
6l

N
3

63
64
G5
66
67
68

69

70
71
72
73

74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82

83-84

85-86
87-93
94



Elected Officials

Ronnie Torres
David Lopez
Jeff Trembly
Rudy Jaramillo

Terese Ulivarri

Sally Garley

Mildred Garley

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
OFFICIAL ROSTER
AS OF JUNE 30, 2007

Mayor

Mayor Pro Tem
Councilor
Councilor

Councilor

City Manager

Finance Officer



S

B S



Hinkle & Landers, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

3500-C Comanche NE
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87107
Tele (505) B83-8788

Fax (505) B83-8797

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Mr. Hector M. Balderas, State Auditor
And

The Mayor and City Council

City of Belen, New Mexico

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information and the respective budgetary
coraparisons of the general and major special revenue of the City of Belen, (City) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. We have also audited each of the City’s non~major governmental funds and respective
budgetary comparisons for the major capital project fund, non-major govemmental funds and the
enterprise funds presented as supplementary informatiop in the accompanying combining and individual
fund financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, as listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the andit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund mmformation of the City of Belen, as of June 30, 2007, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective
budgetary comparisons for the general fund, the Infrastructure Gross Receipts Tax 1/8% Fund, the
Infrastructure Gross Receipts Tax %A% Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
each non major governmental fund and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the major capital project fund, non major
governmenta) funds and enterprise funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America



The City has not presented 2 Management’s Discussion and Analysis in the current year's report. that
accomting principles generally accepted in the United States has determined is necessary (o supplement,
although not required to be part of| the basic financial statements.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issucd a report dated March 18, 2008,
on our consideration of City ol Belen, internal control structure over financial reporting and our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agrecments and other
maticrs. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal coatrol over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
conteol over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the resulls of our

andit.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the linancial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Belen’s basic financial statements, the combining and individual fond financial
statements, and the budgetary comparisons. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Officc of Management and
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also
not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City of Belen. Such information has becn
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, in our opinion,
are fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

W9' 2{4@, A0

Hinkle & Landers, P.C.
March 18, 2008



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF BELEN
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2007
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 3,346,588 750,096 4,096,684
Receivable, net 1,299,255 488,580 1,788,235
Tota) current assets 4,645,843 1,239,076 5.884,91%
Non-current assets
Restricted cash 359,821 115,666 475,487
Capital assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated 10,595,000 2,753,979 13,348,979
Other capital assets, net of accum. depreciation 23,644,821 17,018,489 40,663,310
Total non-current assets 34,599,642 19,888,134 54,487,776
Total assets p 39,245,485 21,127,210 60,372,695
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 376,385 93,768 470,153
Accrued payrol] liabilities 96,337 20,967 117,304
Deposits held for others - 115,666 115,666
Compensated absences 182,547 52,258 234,805
Accrued interest payable - 85,195 85,195
Bonds and notes payable - current portion 952,581 97,349 1,049,930
Landfill post-closure liability - current portion - 29,463 29,463
Total current liablities 1,607,850 494,666 2,102,516
Long-term liabilities
Bonds and notes payable - less current portion 12,664,286 2,187,784 14,852,070
Landfill post-closure liability - 589,275 589,275
Total long-term liabilities 12,664,286 2,777,059 15,441,345
Total liabilities 14,272,136 3,271,725 17,543,861
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 20,622,954 17,487,335 38,110,285
Restricted for:
Debt service 360,876 - 360,876
Unrestncted 3,989,519 368,150 4,357,669
Total net assets 24,973,349 17,855,485 42,828,834
Total liabilities and net assets A 39,245,485 21,127,210 60,372,695

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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ASSETS
Cagh on deposit
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll liabilities
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCE
Reserved for:
Debt service
Unreserved reported in:
General fund
Debt service
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds
Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

§

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF BELEN
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2007
Maijor funds
Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects
1101 1205 1207 1801 Other Total
Infrastructure Infrastructure  Becker Street Governmental Governmental

General 1/8% GRT 1/2% GRT Project Funds Funds
845,283 1,467,597 19,055 217,020 797,629 3,346,584
- - - - 359,821 359,821
1.013.701 84.054 168.2596 - 33.204 1.269.255
1.858,984 1.551.651 187.351 217.020 1.190.654 5.005.660
61,793 - 5,585 - 309,006 376,384
93,807 - - 2,530 96,337
156.804 - - - 156.804
312,404 - 5,585 - 311,536 629,525
- - - - 359,821 359,821
1,546,580 - - - - 1,546,580
- - - - 285,105 285,105
- 1,551,651 181,766 - 277,240 2,010,657
- - - 217.020 (43.048) 173,972
1,546,580 1,551.651 181.766 217.020 875.118 4,376.135
1.858,984 1.551.651 187.351 217,020 1.190.654 5.005.660

e

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHERT
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 34, 2007

Towld fund balances - governmental funds £ 4376,135
Amounts reported for governmental activitics in the
statement of net assets arce different beeause:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therelore are not reported in the funds.
These assets consist of:
Property, furnilure, fixtures, and equipment 68,694,203
Accumulated depreciation (34,454 382)
Total capital assets 34,239,821
Liabilitics are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore,
are pot reported in the funds
Bonds and notes payable and compensated absences - curreat portion (1,135,128)
Bonds and notes payable and compensated absences - non-current portion (12,664,286)
(13,799,414)
Deferred revenue that was recognized as revenue in the government-wide statements 156,804
3

Rounding

Net assets of governmental activities $ 24973349

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF BELEN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

Revenues
Taxes hy
Charges for services
Local sources
Stase sources
Federal sources
Earnings from investroents
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Health & welfare
Culnure and recreation
Capital outiay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Other operating expenses
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Other Financing Sources (uses)
Proceeds from long-term capital related debt
Operaning transfers in
Operating transfers out )
Total other financing sources and uses
Net cbange in fund balances

Fund balance - beginning of year
Fund balance - end of year $

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Major Funds
Special Revenue Capital Projects
1101 1205 1207 1801 Other Total
Infrastructure Infrastructure Becker Street Governmental Governmental
General 1/8% GRT  1/2% GRT Project Funds Funds

4,748,712 515,707 1,032,566 - 365,611 6,662,596
288,611 - - - - 288,611
356,955 - - - £9,297 486,252
307,682 - - 473,500 1,830,963 2,612,145
525,090 25,000 35,000 - 890,006 1,475,096
21,012 136,879 - - 78,590 236,481
9,997 - - - - 9,997
6,298.059 677,586 1,067,566 473,500 3,254,467 11,771,178
" 2,316,127 - - - 75,637 2,391,764
2,403,140 - - - 152,535 2,555,675
934,470 401,809 147,089 - 233,666 1,717,034

- - 35,000 - 141,046 176,046

946,112 - - - 54,827 1,000,939
236,749 801,807 166,281 1,644,695 2,468,716 5,318,248

- - - - 876,772 876,772

- - - - 536,360 536,360

- ~ - - 17,245 17,245
6,836,598 1,203,616 348,370 1,644,695 4,556,804 14,590,083
(538,539) (526,030) 715,196  (1,171,195)  (1,302,337) _ (2,818,905)
- - - - 179,532 179,532

324,681 129,248 345,848 1,388,215 ° 1,594,958 3,782,950
(488,748)  (1,901,759)  (1,061,936) - (280,203)  (3,732,646)
(164,067) (1,772,511) (716,088) 1,388,215 1,494,287 229836
(702,606)  (2,298,541) 3,108 217,020 191,950 (2,589,069)
2,249,186 3,850,192 178,658 - 687,168 6,965,204
1,546,580 1,551,651 181,766 217,020 879,118 4,376,135

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Net change in Tund balanees-total governmental funds 3 (2.589,069)

Amounts reported Lo governmenial activities in the statement of activities aic

dilferent because:

Capilal oullays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over

their estimated uscful lives as depreciation expense, (n the curcent period,
these amouats are:

Capital outlay

Genceral government expenditures included as capital outlay in the financial
statements

Depreciation expense

Excess of capital outlay expenses over depreciation

Deletions of capital assets - loss on disposition of capital assets

5,318,248 —

(16,822)
(2,451,587)
2,849,839
(31,699)

Thesc arc not considered "available” revenues in the governmental funds until received.
Change in amount dcferred revenue on fund statements. 43,880
Principal payments of long term debt and leases and are reported as expenditures

in governmental funds. However, in the statement of activities, those principal

payments are recorded as reductions to the short term and fong term obligation, .
in the current period,

these amounts are:

Principal payments

New capital lease not on balance sheet

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. These activities consist of:

Decrease in compensated absences

Change in net assets of governmental activities

851,973
(179,532)

(25,773)
$ 919,619

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
1011 - GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Initial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actal (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Municipal taxes $ 2,225,563 2,287,461 2,261,627 (25,834)
Licenses and permits 104,510 125,124 79,012 (46,112)
State shared taxes 2,545,631 2,646,724 2,849,403 202,679
Charges for services 227,290 227,290 223,168 (4,122)
Fines and forfeits 109,859 109,859 188,212 78,353
Grants 351,588 413,128 47,996 (365,132)
Investment income 4,000 21,012 21,012 -
Other 220,122 388,061 259,171 (128,890)
Total revenues 5,788,563 6,218,659 5,929,601 (289,058)
Expenditures
General government 2,094,938 2,293,219 2,293,219 -
Public safety 2,391,443 2,459,256 2,420,835 38,421
Culture and recreation 958,812 958,812 558,312 500
Public works 551,733 556,484 556,484 -
Capital outlay 224 834 224,834 203,124 21,710
Total expenditures 6,221,760 6,492,605 6,431,974 60,631
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (433,197) (273,946) (502,373) (228,427)
Other Financing Sources (uses)
Operating transters in 198,600 663,600 324,681 (338,919)
Operating transfers out (98,714) (106,510) (488,748) (382,238)
Total other financing sources (uses) 99,886 557,090 (164,067) (721,157)
Excess (deficiency) of revennes, and
Other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing (uses) $  (333,311) 283,144 (666,440) (949,584)
Cash balance, beginning of year $ 1,578,108 1,578,108

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SPECIAL REVENUE.Z1205 INFRASTRUCTURE GRT 1/8%
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Vartance
[nitial Final [Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
State shared laxes h) 500,274 657,762 520,883 (136,879)
Intcrest - - 136,879 136,879
Total revenucs 500.274 657,762 657,762 -
Expenditures:
Current:
Gencral government 171,000 376,809 376,809 -
Non-current:
Capital outlay - - 801,807 (801,807)

Total expenditures 171,000 376,809 1,178,616 (801,807)
Other financing uses:

Operating transfer in - - 129,248 129,248

Operating transfer out (413,539) (513,544) (1,901,759) (1,388,215)

Total other financing uses (413,539) (513,544) (1,772,511) (1,258,967)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and

other financing uses $ (84,265) (232,591) (2,293,365) (2,060,774)
Cash balance, beginning of year $ 3,760,962 3,760,962 3,760,962

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SPECIAL REVENUE - 1207 INFRASTRUCTURE GRT 1/2%
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Initial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenuves:

Gross Receipts Tax $ 1,001,663 1,042,929 1,042,929 -
Tota) revenues 1,001,663 1,042,929 1,042,529 -
Expenditures:

Current:
Highways and streets 50,000 141,505 141,505 -
Non-current:
Capital outlay - 166,280 166,280 -
Total expenditures 50,000 307,785 307,785 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures
Other financing (sources) uses:
Operating transfers in - - 345,848 345,848
Operating transfers out (876,806) (1,001,812)  (1,061,936) (60,124)
Total other financing uses (876,806) (1,001,812) (716,088) 285,724
Excess (deficiency) of revenues, and

Other financing sources over (under)

expenditures and other financing (uses) $ 74,857 (266,668) 19,056 285,724
Cash balance, beginning of year $ - 303,735 303,735

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF BELEN

BALANCE SHEET
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2007
Major Funds
2602,2603 2604 26012606
7-2605 Solid 2607,2608 .
Water Waste Wastcwalter Tolal
Assets >
Current asscly
Cash and cash cquivalents 345,674 130,226 274,196 750,096
Reecivables, net 195072 166.85) 127,057 488,980
Duc {rom other futds - - - -
Total current assets 540,746 297.077 401,253 1,239.076
Non-current assets
Restricted cash (15,666 - - 115,666
Capital asscls, net 5.965.913 19,493 13,787,062 19.772,468
Total noncurrcnt assets 6.081.579 19.493 13,787,062 (9,888,134
Total assets §  6.622325 316,570 14188315 > 21.127.2210
Liabilities
Current liabilitics
Accounts payable - 85,648 8,120 03,768
Accrued payrol! liabilities 12,459 2,265 6,243 20,967
Due to other funds - - - -
Deposits held for others 115.866 - - 115,666
Accrued interest payable 85,195 - - 85,195
Revenue bonds payable - current portion 68,749 28,600 - 97,349
Compensated absences payable-current portion 31,049 6,439 14,770 52,258
Landfill post-closure liability - current portion - 20,463 - 29,463
Total current liabilities 313,118 152,415 29,133 494,666
Non-current liabilities
Revenue bonds payable (less current portion) 1,694,184 493,600 - 2,187,784
Landfill post-closure liability - 589,275 - 589,275
Total non-current liabilities 1,694,184 1,082,875 - 2,777,059
Total liabilities 2,007.302 1,235,250 26,133 3.271,725
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,202,980 (502,707) 13,787,062 17,487,335
Unrestricted 412,043 (416,013) 372,120 368,150
Total net assets 4,615,023 (918,720) 14,159,182 17,855,485
Total liabilities and net assets 6,622,325 316,570 14,188,315 21,127,210

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
Major Funds
2602,2603 2604 2601,2606
2605 Solid 2607,2608
: ‘Water Waste Wastewater Total
Operating revenues
Sales and services 1,165,910 1,073,363 831,851 3,071,124
Miscellaneous revenue 36,762 4,450 16,615 57,827
Total operating revenues 1.202,672 1,077,813 848,466 3,128,951
Operating expenses
General and administrative 861,390 93,269 241,651 1,166,310
Fuel and power 125,592 5,014 110,252 244,858
Other operating expenses 148,407 1,104,450 252,674 1,505,571
Depreciation 178,877 7,431 572,135 758,443
Total operating expenses 1,314,266 1,214.204 1,176,712 3,705,182
Operating income (loss) (111,594) (136,391} (328,246) (576.231)
Nop-operating revenues and expenses:
Gross receipts tax 144 387 128,927 200 273,514
Federal grants - - 14,699 14,699
State grants - - 148,450 148,450
Loss on disposition of assets - - (7,068) (7,068)
Interest income 12,823 4,018 6,723 23,564
Interest and loan expense (78,806) - - (78.806)
Total non-operating revenues and expenses 78,404 132,945 163,004 374.353
Income before transfers (33,150) (3,446) (165,242) (201,878)
—Operating transfers in (out)
Transfers in 360,143 - 38,690 398,833
Transfers out (251,705) - (197,432) (449,137)
— Net operating transfers 108,438 - (158,742) (50,304)
|Change in net assets 75,248 (3,446) (323,984) (252,182)
Net assets - beginning of year 4,791,628 (917,085) 14,310,182 18,184,725
| |Restatement (251,853) 1,811 172,984 (77,058)
" Net assets - beginning, restated 4,539,775 (915,274) 14,483,166 18,107,667
Total net assets - end of year $ 4,615,023 {918,720) 14,159,182 17.855,485

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES

The City of Belep (City) was incorporated in 1918, The City operates under a mayor-council form of
government and provides the following services: public safety (police, emergency and fire), public works
(highways and streets), community services (culture and recreation), judicial, development, legal,
engineering and general administrative services.

The summary of significant accounting policies of the City of Belen is presented to assist in the
understanding of the City’s financial statements. The financial statements and notes are the representation
of the City of Belen’s management who js responsible for their integrity and objectivity. The financial
statements of the City of Belen have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to government units. The City applies all
relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. Proprietary funds apply
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB)
opinions issued after November 30, 1989, unless the pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. The more gignificant of the City’s accounting policies
are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all
potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was
made by applymng the criteria set forth in GAAP. The basis but not the only criterion for including a
potential component unit with the reporting entity is the governing body’s ability to exercise oversight
respongibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial interdependency. Other
manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but are not limited to, the
selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the ability to significantly influence
operations, and accountability for fiscal matters. A second criterion used in evaluation potential
component units is the scope of public service. Application of this criterion involves considering whether
the activity is conducted within the geographic boundaries of the City and is generally available to its
citizens. A third criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the
reporting entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardiess of whether the City is able to
exercise oversight responsibilities. Based upon the application of these criteria, there are no component
units included in the reporting entity.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Government-Wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report information on all of the
non-fiduciary activities of The City. The effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separatety from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
services. '

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are

offset by program revenues. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for services,
2) Operating grants and contributions and 3) capital grants and contributions. Program revenues included
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

in the Statement of Activilics reduce the cost of the function to be financed from gencral revenues. lems
not properly identificd as program reveoues are reported instead as general revenues.

The Ciry reports all direet expenses by program in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those
clearly identifiable with a function. Depreciation expense is specifically identificd by progrant and is
included tn the direet expense to each program.

Fund_Financial Statements

The City uses funds to report on its financial position and the result of its operations. Fund accounting is
designed to demonstrate fegal compliance and o aid financial management by segregating (ransactions
related to certain goverament functions or activities. A fund is a separatc accounting entily with a sclf-
balancing set of accounts.

I‘unds arc classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each category, in turn,
ts divided into separate “fund types”.

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government’s general activities, including
the collection and disbursement of earmarked money (special revenue funds), and the acquisition of
construction of general capital assets (capital projects fund). The general fund is used to account for all
activilies of the general government not accounted for in other funds.

Proprietary funds are vsed to account for business activities simitar to those found in the private sector,
where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial administration. Goods or
services from such activities can be provided either to outside parties (enterprise funds) or to other
departments or agencies primarily within the government as the utility {und, which account for the
providing of water, wastewater, and sewer services to the residents of the City.

Fiduciary funds (trust and agency funds) are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds.
Trust and agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of
results of operations. There were no fiduciary funds during the year ended June 30, 2007.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, the proprietary fund, and fiduciary
funds. In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, the fiduciary funds are excluded
from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and the enterprise
fund are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
The City reports the following major funds:

Governmenta] Funds

General Fund
The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial resources

except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Infrastructure Gross Receipts Tax 1/8% — Special Revenue Fund
To account for receipt of gross receipt taxes, created by the City ordinances. The proceeds are to be used for
acquisition, construction, operations and maintenance of solid waste, wastewater facilities, streets, sewer
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

systems and related facilities.

Infrastructure Gross Receipts Tax Fund %% — Special Revenue Furd

To account for receipt of gross receipts taxes created by the City ordinances. The proceeds are to be used
for acquisition, construction, operations and maintenance of wastewater facilities, streets, sewer systems
and related facilities, and also 1o pay municipal Gross Receipts Tax Bond Series 1997 and 1998.

Becker Avenue Enhancement Project — Capital Project Fund
To account for grants and loan proceeds used to improve the City’s infrastructure.

Proprietary Funds
Management considers all funds to be major funds. The funds are as follows:

Water Fund, Solid Waste Fund, Wastewater Fund To account for the operation, maintenance, and
development of the City public water system, solid waste system and wastewater system.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatrnent applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focas. Basis of accounting refers to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement

focus applied.

The govermment-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues n the year they are billed. Property taxes receivable are recognized m the government-wide
staternents net of estimated refunds and uncollectible amounts in the period the taxes are levied, even if
not available. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the grantor have been met. As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Amounts reported in the funds as inter fund
receivables or payables have been eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities columns of
the statement of net assets, except for the net residual amounts due between governmental and business-
type activities. Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
confributions including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

The City also reports deferred revenues on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when
potential revenue does not meet both the “measurable” and “available™ criteria for recognition in the
current period. Deferred revenues ajso arise when resources are received prior to the occurrence of
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when
The City has a Jegal claim to the resources, the hability for deferred revenues is removed from the
combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

All governmental funds are accounted for using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current
liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present
increases and decreases in net current assets. Under the modified accrual basis, revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafier to pay for liabilities of the current period.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

For this parpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 diys of
the end of the current period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as uader
accrual accounting, However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensaied
iabseaces, clainis and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest income and
investment income. Sales and use taxes are classified as derived tax revenues and are recognized when
the underlying exchange takes place and the revenues are measurable and avaitable. Grants and similar
items ave recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposced by the provider hayve been
met. All other revenues such as fines and permits arc not susceptible to accerual because generally they are
nol measurable unl ceceived in cash. All revenues received from funding sources are considered non-

reverting.

Proprictary funds are accounted for using a flow of economic resources measurement focus and the
acerual basis of accounting. With this mcasurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of the [und are included on the balance sheet. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recorded
when carned and cxpenses when the related fund liabilities are incurred. The City distinguishes operating
revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering foods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the wastewater, solid waste and water funds are
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Inventories of expendable goods and supplies are not considered as they are nominal in amount.

D. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The original reporting budget is coordinated and prepared by the City Manager and staff. The budget is
brought before the City Council for approval. The approved budget is then presented to the State of New
Mexico, Department of Finance and Administration for approval. Amendments to the budget, including
operating transfers, must follow the same process as the original budget. Adjustments and other
amendments made to the original budget have been included in the budgetary comparison statements of
this report. The Department of Finance and Administration exercises budget control at the fund level. The
budgets of all individual funds may not be legally over expended. All appropriations lapse at year-end.

Budgets and amendments to the budgets for all governmental funds are adopted in a legally permissible
manner. The budgets presented in the financial statements are considered to be adopted on a basis
inconsistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).
Budgetary comparisons presented for theses funds are on a non-GAAP (cash) budgetary basis.

E. Inter Fund Balances and Activity

During the course of current operations and in prior years, cash advance transactions occurred between
individual funds. These receivables and payables are classified as “Internal Balances™ on the balance

sheet,
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

F. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash consists of cash held by The City for the enterprise fund customer meter deposits and
reserves required for the enterprise debt covenants.

G. Capital Assets

The accounting treatrnent over property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether the
assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are
reported in the govemment-wide or fund financial statements.

Government-wide Slaiements

All capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar ftems) are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.
Estimated historical cost was used to value some of the water rights reported in the general fund and in
the government-wide statements.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of
Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Assets. Depreciation is
provided over the assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. Purchases
and donations for assets over $5,000 are capitalized.

GASB 37 does not require construction period interest be capitalized from debt related to construction
in progress for governmental funds. Any construction period interest is capitalized from debt related to
construction in progress in the proprietary funds when applicable.

The City inciudes software and library books in the capital assets and depreciates the sofrware and
library books as applicable. Software includes computer software that has been developed for internal
use.

The range of estimated nseful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Land Unlimited

Buildings 40
Building improvements 40
Public domain infrastructure 40
System infrastructure 20-30
Office equipment 10
Vehicles ' 10
Library books 5
Heavy equipement 10

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets vsed in governmental fund operations are accounted for as
capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary
fund operations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

[. Conipensated Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation and compensated leave that is expected to be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources ave reporled as expenditure. No liabtlity is recorded for non-vesting
accumulated rights Lo receive sick pay benefits.

City employees acerue sick leave at the rate of ten hours per month. They carn vacation leave al the rate
of ten hours per month. Employces with ten and twenty year-service reccive additional five and ten
vacalion days per year respectively. The maximum accrual of vacation leave is 240 hours. A liability for
these amounts ts reported in the governmental funds only if they have matuced, for example as a resul of
eaployee resignations and retirements.

in the governmental fund financial statements, the City does not reporl any compensated abscnces as a
liability. Compensaled absences expenditures are reported as they are used from expendable available
financial resources, while the proprietary funds report the liability as it ts incurs. The government-wide
statcments report compensated absences as a long-term debt.

I Long Term QOblieations

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund
operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund

financial statements,

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources is reported as tabilities in
the government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily of bonds payable, notes payable
and accrued compensated absences. Long-term obligations are reporied in the Government-wide
financial statements as long-term debt if it is due in one year or more and as current portion of debt if duc

tn one year or less.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements. The
debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal and interest reported as
expenditures. The accounting for proprietary fund is the same in the fund statements as it is in the

government-wide statements.

J. Equity Classifications

Government-wide Stalements
Net assets on the Statement of Net Assets include the following:

Invested in capital assets- net of related debt — Is the component of net assets that reports the
difference between capital assets and both the accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balance
of debt, excluding unspent proceeds, that is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or

improvement of these capital assets.

a,

b. Restricted net assets~ Consist of net assets with constraints placed on the use by (1) external groups
such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law

through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or federal law.
Unrestricted net assets — Include all other net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

“invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

The City’s policy is to apply restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Fund Statements

Governmental fupd equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as reserved and
unreserved, with unreserved further split between designated and undesignated. Proprietary fund equity
is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.

K. Inter Fund Transactions

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses. Transactions that
constitute reimbursement to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly
applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as
reduction of expenditures/expenses fund that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions, except quasi-
external transaction and reimbursements are reported as transfers. Non-recuiring or noo-routine
permanent transfers of equity are reported as equity transfers. All inter-fund activities between
governmental funds and fiduciary funds, if any, remain as interfund balances on the government-wide
Statement of Net Assets.

L. Propertv Taxes

Property taxes are collected by the Valencia County Treasurer and remitied to The City monthly.
Delinquent property taxes payable to the Valencia County Treasurer are not recognized until actually
collected and remitted by the Valencia County Treasurer to The City. Property taxes are payable to the
County Treasurer in two equal installments due on November 10® of each year in which the tax bill was
prepared and mailed on April 10® of the following year. Pursuant to Section 7-38-46, NMSA 1978,
property taxes are delinquent if not paid within thirty days after the date on which they are due. Taxes on
real property may be collected by selling the real property on which the taxes are delinquent.

M. Pension Plan

. Substantizlly all of the full-time employees of The City participate in a defined benefit contributory
retirement plan through Public Employees Retirement Act (PERA) of the State of New Mexico, a cost
sharing multiple employer-public employee retirement system.

N. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets,
errors and omissions, mjuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City camies commercial insurance
for these risks of loss, including employee health and accident insurance.

0. Cash Flows

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments and restricted
cash assets to be cash equivalents.
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For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

P, Estimates
The preparation of financial statenients in conformity with accounting standtards gencrally aceepted i lhe

United States ol Anerica requires management to make assumptions that affect certain reported amounts
and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ.

2. CASH

Cash inchudes cash in banks with various financial institutions. As of Junc 30, 2007, the amount of cash
reported on the fnancial statements differs fromn the amount on deposit with the vacious institutions
because of transaction in transit and outstanding checks. The locations and amounts deposited at cach off
the financial institutions are as loltows:

Account Account Bank Reconciled
Depository Narme Type Balance Baluonce

Wells Fargo Bank General Checking Checking 956,480 709,762
Wells Fargo Bank Matin Luther King Checking 326 326
Wells Fargo Bunk Fire Pumper Savings 200,667 200.667
Total Wells Fargo 1,157,473 910,755
first Community Bank Capttal Investment Checking 05,953 105,953
First Community Bank Capital infrastructure Money market 99,817 99,817
First Community Bank W&:S Revenue Bond Reserve  Checking 10,000 10,000
Ficst Community Bank Payroll account Checking 120,043 10,711
First Community Bank Rec'd Westside Money market - 97,032
First Community Bank Recreation Capital/Stage Savings 22855 22,855
First Community Bank Utility account Checking (42,564 (15,025)
First Community Bank Utility Capital investment Money market 7,472 7,472
First Community Bank Wir/Wste Wir Rehab Money market 140,491 140,491
First Community Bank Water rights Money market 135.186 135,186
Total First Community Bank 784,381 614,492
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Account Account Bank Reconciled
Depository Name Type Balance Balance
My Bank GO Bonds Money market 6,793 6,793
My Bank Meter Deposits Savings 102,034 102,034
My Bank Gen 1/12th Inv Savings 590 580
My Bank Airport Investment Fund Checking 27,477 27,477
My Bank W&S Rev Bond Reserve Money market - -
My Bank Capital Investment/WW Money market 140,803 140,803
My Bank Solid Waste Closure Money market 117,508 117,508
My Bank W&S Improvement Checking 504 504
Total My Bank 395,709 395,709
Bank of Albuquerque 2005 Revenue Bond Issue Demand deposit 377,452
and CD 377,452
Bank of Albuquerque Gas Tax Revenue Bond CD 156.000 156,000
Total Bank of Albuquerque 533,452 533,452
Bank of Albuquerque-Trust Sces NMFA Fire Truck Interest Acct Money market 4,931 4,931
Bank of Albuquerque-Trust Sces NMTFA Fire Truck Reserve Acet  Money market 26,766 26,766
Bank of Albuguerque-Trust Sces NMFA Reinken Interest acct Money markest 1,463,456 1,463,456
Bank of Albuquerque-Trust Sces ~ NMFA Reinken Reserve acct Money market 332,600 332,600
Bank of Albuquerque-Trust Sces ~ NMFA Wir/WW Interest Acct Money market 9,084 9,084
Bank of Albuguerque-Trust Sces ~ NMFA Wir/WW Reserve Acct Money market 102.827 102,827
1,939,664 1,939,664
Bank of NY-Western Trust GRT 1997 Debt Service Money market 56 96
Bank of NY-Western Trust Sales Rev. Bonds Reserves Money market 456 456
Total Bank of NY 552 552
New Mexico Finance Authority Fire Truck payment accoumt Loan 10,617 10,617
New Mexico Finance Authority Reinken payment account Loan 116,544 116,544
New Mexico Finance Authority Wir/WW payment account Loan 50,086 50,086
Total NMFA 177,247 177,247
Petty Cash 100 100
Pesty Cash 200 200
300 300
Total cash per the City 4,988,778 4,572,171
Reconciling items (416,607) -
Total cash per the F/S 4,572,171 4,572,171
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3. DEPOSITORY COLLATERAL

b accordance with Seetion 6-10-17 NMSA 1978 Compilation, deposits of public money arc required Lo
be collateralized. Pledged collateral is required in an aggregate value equal to onc hall of the amount of
aninstred public woney in cach account during the fiscal year.

Seeuritics which are obligations of the Statc of New Mexico, its agencies, institutions, counlics, or
muaicipalitics or other subdivisions are accepted as security at par value; all other securilics are accepled
as seeurily al mavkel vatue. No security is required for the deposit of public movey that is insured by the
IFederal Deposit lasarance Corporation, or the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund,

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned
to it. The City's deposil policy is to coltateralize one hall of the uninsurcd public money in ¢ach account.
As of June 30, 2007, the City’s bank balances of $4,572,171 were exposced to custodial risk as foflows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized $ 460,573

Uninsured and collateral held by pledging bank's trust department, not in the City's name 2.410.442

Total $ 2871015

The following schedule shows the risk categories for the various bank deposits for the City of Belen-By
bank:

Deposits in Wells Fargo Bank New Mcxico

Demand deposits $ 1157473
Less FDIC insurance (200.000)
Total uninsured public funds 957.473
50% collateral requirements s 478,737
Pledged security held in bank's name at Custodian - Well Fargo Bank, Mina-Mpls
Maturity Fair Market .Security

Security Description Date Value Interest Rate
Federal Reserve Bank CUSIP 31371 MNG8 01/01/2036 § 299,957 6%
Federat Reserve Bank CUSIP 31408H227 05/01/2036 274,309 6%
Federal Reserve Bank CUSIP 36202DUJ8 09/20/2032 43,596 6%
Federal Reserve Bank CUSIP 36202DVN8 12/20/2032 61,509 6%
Total cotlateral $ 679,371

Over collateralized 3 200,634
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Deposits in First Community Bank

Demand deposits $ 784,381
Less FDIC insurance (122 .855)
Total uninsured public funds 661.526
50% collateral requirements $  330.763

Pledged security held in bank's name at Custodian - First Community Bank, A]buqﬁerque, NM

Maturity Fair Market ~ Security
Security Description Date Value Interest Rate
FHLB3133MTQB? 1115/07 § 49,657 3.50%
FHCB31131TMT3 06/12/08 39,311 3.38%
FHLB3133X0L)6 08/15/08 34,418 3.75%
FHLB3133X2BZ7 11/14/08 48,944 3.63%
FHLB31339YEL2 12/30/08 24230 3.05%
FHLB3133X8CS9 08/14/0% 97,428 3.88%
FNMA313%1LW43 05/01/12 150,265 6.00%
FHR31395AUYY 12/15/23 34.802 5.00%
Total collateral $  479.055
Over collateralized $ 148292
Deposits in My Bank
Demand deposits $ 3965709
Less FDIC insurance (127.981)
Total uninsured public funds 267,728
50% collateral requirements § __ 133.864

Pledged security held in bank's name at Custodian - Texas Independent Bankers Bank, Dallas

Maturity Fair Market

Security Description Date Value
FHLB31339YVV1 07/21/08 $ 195,986
FHLB31339YVV1 07/21/08 97,993
FHLB31339YVVlI 07/21/08 25,498
FHLB3133X9654 10/26/07 49,645
FHLB3133X96S4 10/26/07 24,822
FHLB3133X9654 10/26/07 24,822
FHLB3133X96S4 10726/07 49,645
Tota) collateral 468,411
Over collateralized $ T,SM
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Deposits in Bk of Albuquerque

Dewatd deposits 195,716
D deposils 337.736

533,452
Less FDIC lnsuranee (200.000) _
Totat uninsured public funds 333452 :
50% collaleral requirments $_ 166,726
*ledued sceurity held i bank's name at Cusiodian - Federal home Loan Bank, Dallas, T'exas

Maturity Fair Market  Sceurity

Secearilv Desceription Ditte Value Interest Rate
FIHLBII296MZ12 08/01/2033 5 310.688 5%
Total coltluteral $  510.688
Over collaicralized § 343962

The funds held by the New Mexico Finance Authorily on behall of the City of Belen are
$1.939,664. Cash with New Mexico Finance Authority is held by Lhe State Treasurer. I’lcase
see Lhe State Treasurer’s annual report for the GASB 40 Disclosure of the investments held by
the New Mexico Finance Authority. That report may be obtained by writing the New Mcxico
State Treasurer's Qffice, P. O. Box 608, Santa Fe, NM 87504-0608.

All amounls deposited with the State Treasurer are in one financial institution.

The New Mexico State Treasurer monitors the cotlateral for deposits held by it for the other state
entities, which would include the investment account of the New Mexico Finance Authority.
The Office of Lhe Stale Treasurer has its own separate annual independent audit in which the
cotlateral pledged to secure deposits is disclosed. There 1s not custodial credit risk at the City
level since the cash amount s under the contract of the New Mexico Staie Treasurer.

Interest Rate Risk: The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates. The LGIP portfolio’s weighted average maturity (WAM) is a key determinant of
the tolerance of a fund’s investment to rising interest rates. The LGIP’s portfolio’s weighted
average maturity (WAM) was New MexiGROW LGIP 18-day WAM 7 day yield 5.24%.

Credir Risk: State law limits investments in commercial paper, corporate bonds and mutual bond
funds to the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The
City has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. As of June 30,
2007, the City’s investment in the New MexiGROW Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP)

was rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s.
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4. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2007 consist of the following:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Tota)
Receivables:
Property taxes $ 178,278 - 178,278
Gross receipts tax 917,091 21,014 538,105
Lodgers tax 6,366 - 6,366
Franchise tax 47,483 - 47,483
Grants 150,037 - 150,037
Customer accounts - 479,220 479,220
Gross receivables 1,269,255 500,234 1,799,489
Less allowance
for uncollectibles - (11,254) (11,234)
Net receivables $ 1,299,255 488,980 1,788,235

An allowance for uncollectible accounts is maintained for business-type activity accounts that are deemed
uncollectible.

5. CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes in the capital assets for governmenta] activities during the fiscal
year ended June 30:

Governmental activities: 2006 Additions Deletions Adjustments 2007
Captial assets not being depreciated:
Land s 5,434,617 - - - 5,434,617
Construction in progress 411,409 4,748,974 - - 5,160,383
Other capital assets:
Buildings 11,861,630 . - - - 11,861,630
Machinery and equipment 2,079,452 198,847 (58,879) 54,573 2,273,993
Furniture and fixtores 127,614 7,336 - 30 134,580
Vehicles 1,169,761 346,269 (130,472)  (69,323) 1,316,235
Infrastructure 42.643,381 - - (131,616) 42,512,365
Total capital assets 63,727,864 5,301,426 (189,351) (145,736) 68,694,203
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (7,212,015) (266,541) - 2 (7,478,554)
Machinery and equipment (1,667,664) (75.346) 58,879 (52,310) (1,736,441)
Furniture and fixnres (98,818) (4,587) - 86 (103,319)
Vehicles (647,686) (102,069) 98,773 28,094 (622,888)
Infrastructure (22,554.663)  (2,003,044) - 44,527 (24.513,180)
(32,180,846) _ (2,451,587) 157,652 20,359 (34.454,.382)
Capital assets, net $ _ 31.547,018 2,849,839 (31,699) (125337) 34.239,82]
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The lollowing ts a sunmary of changes in the capital assets for the enterprise funds for the year ended

June 30

Recluss-
Buginess-type activities: 2006 Additions  Deletions ification  Adjustments 2007
Cupital assets not being depreciated:

Water righs $ 2671819 - - (70.954) - 2,600,865

Construction in progress 4.957.800 75.095 - (4.957.800) 7.066 82.)161

7629619 75,095 - (5,028,754) 7,066 2,683,026

Other capital assets:

Waslewsier sysiem 5123438 - - - 102,162 5,225,600

Buildings 14,050,794 24,688 - (6.627,335) (224,749) 7.223,398

Machinery and cquipment (114,870 6,269 - - 10,232 L,131,371

Furniture and fixtures 48365 5.381 - - - 53,746

Vehicles 223,475 60,551 (45,600) - 9,000 247,426

Infrastructure 6,026,815 - - 11.656.089 - 17.682.904

Other capital assets, net 26.587.757 96.889 (45.600) _ 5.028,754  (103.355) 31.564.445

Total capital assets 34.217.376 171,984 (45,600) - (96.289) 34.247.471

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Wastcwater system (3,824,967) (174,187) - 2,942,144 - (1,057,010)
Buildings (5,193,947) (180,345) - 528,788  (175,989) (5,021,493)
Machinery and equipment (1,211,182) (29,014) - . £95,220 (1,044,976)
Furniture and (ixtures (37,969) (2,0t9) - - - (39,988)
Vehicles (175,898) (18,654) 38,532 - - (156,020)
fnfrastructure (3,330.359) (354.225) - {3.470.932) - (7.155,516)
(13,774.322) (758,444) 38.532 - £9.231 (14.475.003)

Capital assets, net £ 20,443.054 (586.460) (7.068) - (77.058) 19.772.468

The adjustments made to capital assets were primarily brought about by keeping better track of
construction in progress and adjusting beginning year balances in other capital asset categories.

Reclassifications were for completed construction in progress projects.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Although depreciation is not funded, it must be considered in order to properly reflect the results of
operations and the replacement of the depreciated assets. Depreciation is charged to governmental and

business-type activities as follows:

Depreciation
Governmental Activties expense
General government b 144,561
Public safety 124,559
Public works 2,051,369
Cultural and recreation 131,098
Total $ 2,451,587
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Depreciation
Business-type Activities expense
Water $ 178,878
Solid Waste 7,431
Wastewater 572,135
Total § 758,444

6. LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of all bond, note payable and compensated absences transactions of the City
for the year ended June 30:

Due Within
2006 Additions Reductions  Adjustments 2007 One Year

Governmental funds debt
Notes payabie S 9,037,498 - (401,628) 431,810 9,067,680 431,705
Bonds payable 4,820,000 - (445,000) - 4,375,000 455,000
Capital lease - 179,532 (5,345) 174,187 32,938
Compensated absences 156.774 182.547 (156.774) - 182.547 182.547
$ 14014272 362,079 (1.008.805) 431.810 13,799.356 1.102.150

Due Within
2006 Additions Reductions 2007 One Year
Business-type funds debt
Notes payable 3 740,074 - (35,941) 704,133 18,349
Bonds paysble 1,675,000 - (94,000) 1,581,000 59,000
Compensated absences 51.929 52.258 (51.929) 52.258 52.258
$ 2.467.003 52.258 (181.870) 2.337.391 149.607

Prior year compensated absences have been liquidated by the general fund.

An adjustment was made to correct a note liability from a prior year.
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Debt service requirements at June 30, 2007 were as follows:

Governnmental Activities

Yeur
Ended New Mexico
June 30 Revenue Bonds Finance Authority
Irincipnl Interest Principal Interest
2008 3 455,000 191,020 234,101 259,332
2009 475,000 169,090 244,074 249,185
2010 300,000 146,140 254,718 238764
2011 515,000 122,110 266,052 227,464
2012 345,000 99.655 233,923 215,423
2003-2017 2.085.000 249.840 1,347,462 899,705
20182022 - - 1,495,701 530,7tS
2023-2026 - - 1197112 I58.689
Total 3 4.375.000 977.855 5.273,143 2.779.477
Yecar
Ending New Mexico Envirnmental
June 30 Department Loan Capital Lease
Principal Interest Principal Interest
2008 § £97,604 80,207 32,938 7,324
2009 201,727 76,084 34,486 5,776
2010 205,938 71.873 36,106 4,156
2011 210,239 67,572 37,802 2,460
2012 214,632 63,179 32,855 697
2013-2017 1,142,396 246,663 - -
2018-2022 1,267,137 121,922 - -
2023-2026 354.864 13,386 - -
Total s 3,794.537 740,886 174,187 20413
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Business-type activites

Year
Ending Water System Improvement New Mexico
June 30 Revenue Bonds Finance Authority
Principal Interest Principal Interest
2008 59,000 73,565 28,600 24,500
2009 25,000 71,175 28,160 23,834
2010 26,000 70,956 29,920 22,863
2011 28,000 69,079 29,480 21,595
2012 29,000 67,714 31,680 19,890
2013-2017 169,000 315,754 189,200 67,704
2018-2022 213,000 270,563 185,160 19,556
2023-2027 271,000 213,330 - -
2028-2032 345,000 140,156 - -
2033-2037 416.000 48,019 - -
Toual 1,581,000 1,340.311 522,200 200,342
Year
Ending San Juan-Chama
June 30 Note Payable
Principal Interest
2008 9,745 5,542
2009 10,046 5,245
2010 10,352 4,539
2011 10,668 4,623
2012 10,993 4,298
2013-2017 60,193 16,262
2018-2022 69,932 6,517
Total $ 181,933 47,426

The adjustment to notes payable was for a note that was dated and recorded in the current year although
the proceeds for the note were received before the end of the prior fiscal year.

7. WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

The City, in its efforts to improve upon and make necessary operation improvements to the wastewater
treatment plant in order to bring the City into compliance with federal standards as monitored by State
and Federal regulatory agencies, has initiated steps to obligate the City for significant future costs. By
virtue of Ordinance No. 1997-08, the City has authorized loan commitments up to $4,049,684 to be
obtained from the New Mexico Environment Department. The purpose of the loan is to acquire, construct,
modify and otherwise improve the wastewater facilities of the City’s Joint Water and Sewer systems. The
City has pledged any available surplus net revenues of the Y4 Infrastructure Gross Receipts tax. The yearly
interest rate approximates 4%. Repayment of the loan would not exceed a term of twenty years. The
balance of the loan at June 30, 2007 was $3,362,727. '
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§. WATER RIGIITS

In E990, the City cadered into an agreement with the United States Department of the Interior ~ Burcau of
Reclamation- sceuring S00 acre-feet of water rights from the San Juan Chama Water Project. ‘The
agreement requires the City to reimburse the project for a pro rata share of construction costs and annual
operating costs. The fixed construction costs required annual pazyments of $16,044 until 2003 and then of
315200 extending theough 2022,

9. BUDGFETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Combined Statement of Revenues and Expenditures- Budget and Actual (NON-GAAP Basis)-All
Governmental Fund Types reflects actual results ol operations on the budgcetary basis of accounting (cash

basis).
The major differences between the budgetary and GAAP basis are that:

1. Revenues arc recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual

(GAAP).
2. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual

" (GAAP).

Adjustments necessary to convert the result of operation at June 30, 2007 from the budget basts to the
GAAP basis are shown below:

RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY BASIS TO GAAP BASIS STATEMENTS

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
In(ra- Infra- Becker
structure structure  Avenue Solid Wastc-

General V8%GRT  172%GRT  Project Waier Waste waier

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
and other financing sources over

expenditures and other financing
uses (budgetary basis) $  (666,440) (2,293,365) 19,056 217,020 42,131 113,88} 153,584

Adjustmeants:

To adjust apphicable revenue

accruals and defermals

Receivables 6,461 (5,176)  (10,363) - (34,794) (79,671) (17,91))
To adjust applicable expenditures

and accruals and payments

Payables and accrued expenses (42,627) - (5.58%) - (32,089) (37.656) (459.657)
Excess of revenues and other

financing sources over

expenditures and other financing

uses (GAAP basis) $ (702,606) (2,298,541) 3,108 217,020 75,248 (3,446) (323,984)
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10. CENTRAL SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY

The City has entered into a Joint Powers Agreement with the Village of Los Lunas to form the Central
Solid Waste Authonity (CSWA). The purpose of the CSWA is 1o enable the parties involved to more fully
comply with New Mexico Solid Waste Act and to provide for the disposition of solid waste by
establishing modern facilities for recycling, disposition and transportation of solid waste, The CSWA will
be funded by the respective parties pro rata based on population of the covered Jocalities. In August 1996,
the City authorized the execution of and delivery of a loan agreement between the City and the New

Mexico Finance Authority.

The Village of Los Lunas, New Mexico is the fiscal agent and can provide separate financial statements
for the activity of the CSWA.

11. LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS

State and federal laws and regulations have required the City to close its landfill site and stop accepting
waste and to cover the landfill and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for
thirty years after closure. The City has estimated the liability for closure and post-closure care and
recognized the liability in the Enterprise Fund’s Cornbined Statement of Net Assets, on present estimates,
the City expects the estimated total current cost of the landfill closure and post-closure to be $618,738,
which is based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment and services required to close, monitor
and maintain the landfil) were acquired as of June 30, 2007. However, the actual cost of closure and post-
closure care may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, information, or changes in landfill
laws and regulations.

12. RETIREE HEALTH CARE ACT CONTRIBUTIONS

The Retiree Health Care Act (ACT) (Chapter 10, Article 7C NMSA 1978) provides comprehensive core
group health insurance for persons who have retired from certain public service in New Mexico. The
Retiree Health Care Authority is the administrator for the plan. The purpose is to provide eligible retirees,
their spouses, dependents, and surviving spouses as well as dependents with health insurance consisting
of a plan or optional plans of benefits that can be purchased by funds flowing into the Retiree Health Care
Fund and by co-payments or the out-of-pocket payments of eligible retirees.

Monies flow to the Retiree Health Care Fund on a pay-as-you-go basis eligible employers and eligible
retirees. Eligible employers consist of institutions of higher education, school districts, or other entities
participating in the Public School Insurance Authority, state agencies, state courts, magistrate courts,
municipalities or counties which are affiliated under or covered by the Educational Retirement Act,
Public Employees Retirement Act, Volunteer Firefighters Act, Judicial Retirement Act or the Magistrate
Retirement Act.

Eligible retirees are: (1) retirees who make contributions to the fund for at least five years prior to
retrement and whose eligible employer during that period of time made contributions as a participant in
the Retiree Health Care Act on the person’s behalf (unless the person retires before July 1, 1995), in
which case the time period required for employee and employer contributions becomes the time between
July 1, 1990 and the date of retirement; or (2) retirees defined by the Act who retired prior to July 1, 1990,
and former Jegislators who served at least two years.

Each participating employer makes contributions to the fund in the amount of 1.3 percent of each
participating employee’s salary. Each participating employee contributes to the fund an employee
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contribution cqual to .65 percent of the employee’s annual salary. Cach participating retirce pays a
monthly premium equal to one-half of one percent of the employee’s annual salary. Each pacticipating
retivee pays monthly premium for the basic single plan and an additional participation fec of five dollars
(35.00) if the cligible participant retired prior to July 1, 1990 and made no contributions to the plan,

Conltributions from participating employers and participating ermployces become the property of the
Retiree Health Fund and are not refundable under amy circumstances, including termination of
employment or Llermination of the participating employer’s operation or participation in the Retiree {lealth
Carc Act. The employer, employee, and retirce contributions are remitted to the Retiree Health Care
Aulhotity on a monthty basis.

The Retiree lealth Care Authority tssues a scparate, publicly available awdited financial report that
tncludes post employmeat bencfit expenditures of premiums and claims paid participant contribulions
(cmploycr, cmployee and retirec) and net expenditures for the fiscal year. The report also includes the
approximate nuinber of retirees participating in the ptan. That report may be obtained by writing to the
Retiree Health Care Authority, 4308 Carlisle Bivd. NE, Suite 104, Albuquerque, New Mexico 87107.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the City remitted $35,968 in employer contributions and $17,984
in employee contributions to the Retiree Health Care Authority.

The Retiree Flealth Care Authority is implementing GASB 43 in FY07. As part of the State of New
Mexico, all agencies will need to implement GASB 45 in FYO08. The existence of the new GASB 45

standard and its expected impact is unknown.

13. RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan Description. Substantially all of The City’s full-time employees participate in a public employee
retirement system authorized under the Public Employees Retirement Act (Ch 10, Article |1 NMSA 978).
The Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) is the Administrator of the plan, which is a cost
sharing multiple employer defined benefit retirement plan. The plan provides for retirement, disability
benefits, survivor benefits and cost-of-living adjustments to plan members and beneficiaries. PERA issues
a separate, publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing PERA-P.O. Box 2123, Santa Fe, NM

87504,

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute a percentage (ranges form 15.65% for regular
members 16.2% for fire department members to 16.3% for police) of their gross salary. The City is
required to contribute 11.65% for regular employees, 18.5% for police personnel, and 21.25% for fire
department members of the gross covered salary. The contribution requirements of plan members and the
City of Belen are established under Chapter 10, Article 11 NMSA 1578. The requirements may be
amended by acts of the Legislature. The City’s contributions to PERA for the years ending June 30, 2007,
2006 and 2005 were $593,096, $501,658, and $348,777 respectively, equal to the amount of the required

contributions for each year.

14 CONTINGENCIES

At June 30, 2007 the City was involved in a pending litigation. An estimate of a potential loss from this
litigation as of June 30, 2007 cannot be made.
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The following funds had a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2007.

Proprietary Fund 2604 — Solid Waste (§918,720)
($122,318)

Library Renovation Fund 1217

Management anticipates future resources in excess of anticipated expenditures in amounts sufficient to

eliminate this negative balance.

16. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The City has no interfund receivables and payables between its funds at year end June 30, 2007

The purposes of the interfund balances during the year are to account for various accounts payable and
receivables during the course of ordinary operations due between the funds. All interfund balances, when

outstanding, are expected to be repaid within a vear of the government’s year end.

17. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Transfers and payments within the reporting entity are substantially for the purpose of subsidizing
operating functions, funding capital projects, namely street projects. All transfers made during the year
were considered routine and were consistent with the general characteristics of The City’s transfers.

The following schedule details the net inter fund transfers made by the City during the year ended June 30, 2007

Infra- nfra- Becker Other Total
structure  structure Street Waste- Sovernmental  Transfers
General 178%GRT 12%GRT  Project Water water Fungds Out
General 3 - - 345,848 - - 142,500 488,748
Infra 1/8%GRT 155,000 129,248 - 1,388,215 - - 229,296 1,901,759
Infra 1/2%GRT 90,751 - - - - - 971,185 1,061,936
Water - - - - 75,868 32,447 143,390 251,705
Solid Waste - - - - - - - -
Wastewater 50,490 - - - 59,520 6,243 81,179 197,432
Other Governmental Funds 28,440 - - - 224,755 - 27.008 280,203
Total Transfers In s 324,681 125.248 345,848 1,.388.215 360.143 38,6590 1.594.958 4,181,783

Transfers are primarily nsed to move funds from:
¢ The proprietary funds to the general fund for salaries and wages and related costs of personnel.

e The general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with

budgetary authorizations.

»  The proprietary funds to the debt service fund for debt service.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN )
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

18. JOINT POWER AGREEMENTS

Valencin County:

Pacticipants

Responsible party lor operations
Deseription

Beginning and endiong dates of agreement

Total cstimated amount of project and portion
applicable to agency

Awmount agency contributed in current fiscal year
Audit responsibility

Name of government agency where revenues
And expenditures are reported

Village of Los Lunas
Participants

Responsible party for operations
Description

Beginning and ending dates of agreement
Total estimated amount of project and portion
Applicable to the City

Amount agency contributed in current fiscal year
Audit responsibility

Name of government agency where revenues
And expenditures are reported

Valenocia County:

Participants

Responsible party for operations
Description

Valencia County and City ol Belen

Valencia County

Provide for the holding of impounded animals
at Valencia County Animal Countrol Center
7/102- Open

Valencia County provides facilities for $4,848

NA Service provided
Valencia county

DFA

Village of Los Lunas, City of Belen, Village of
Bosque farms, Couaty of Socorro, and City of
Socorro

Village of Los Lunas

Form a Bi-County, regional solid waste disposal

authority in order to fully comply with the Solid

Waste Act, to provide for disposition of solid

waste by establishing modern, and, where

possible, state of art, facilities for recycling,

disposition and transportation of solid waste, to

provide for the general protection of the health,

welfare and safety of the public and to provide ',
staff, management assistance, planning and '
facilities therefore

4/4/95- Indefinite

Based proportionately upon respective percentages

of the population (Belen 11%, Valencia Co. 49%,

Bosque Farms 6%, Los Lunas 10%,

Socorro County 9%, Socorro City 13%,

Magdalena 2%.

NA Service provided

Valencia county

DFA

Valencia County and City of Belen
Valencia County
Housing of prisoners at the Valencia County
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Detention Center

Beginning and ending dates of agreement 12/15/04-12/15/09-Renewable each year for an
additional year up to five years.

Total estimated amount of project and portion Valencia County provides facilities and charges

applicable to agency the City of Belen $61.17 per day, per detainee.
Amount agency contributed in current fiscal year NA Service provided

Audit responsibility Valencia county

Name of government agency where revenues

And expenditures are reported DFA

19. RESTATEMENT

The following restatements were made for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

Description Fund Reason Amount

Government Wide Statements

Governmenta) Activities Correct errors in CIP from prior years b (125,337)
Governmental Activities Correct note liability from prior year (431,810)
Amount of prior period adjustment shown for governmental activities s (557,147)
Water 2602 Correct errors in CIP from prior years $ (251,853)
Solid Waste 2604 Correct errors in CIP from prior years 1,811
Wastewater 2601 Correct errors in CIP from prior years 172,584
Total Enterprise funds and Business - type funds b (77,058)

See Note 5 for explanation of capital assets adjustments and Note 6 for note payable adjustment.
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NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Parks and Recreation Fund

To account for revenues collected from taxes on cigarettes sold within the City boundaries pursnant to the
Cigarette Tax Act, NMSA 7-12-1 and 7-12-15, and miscellaneous revenue received from taxpayers for
special vses or tournaments, etc. Expenditures from this fund may be used for recreational facilities and
salaries of employees necessary for the operation of such facilities.

Fire Protection Fund

To account for State revenues received pursuant to the Fire Protection Fund Law, NMSA 59A-53-1.
Expenditures from this fund may be used for the purchase, constructions, operating, and maintenance of
fire stations, except for the station’s water supply system; fire apparatus and equipment; the payment of
insurance premiums on the above; and for insurance premiums for injuries or death of firefighters.

Emergency Medical Services Fund

To account for State revenues received pursuant to the Emergency Medical Services Fund Act, NMSA
24-10A. Expenditures from this fund may be used for the establishment of emergency medical services;
to acquire emergency medical services vehicles, equipment supplies; and for training and licensing of
Jocal emergency management services personnel.

Jail (Correction) Fund

To account for fines collected by the City Courts and designated to be used for the operation and
maintenance of City jail. Authonty is Section 35-15-12, NMSA.

Law Enforcement Fund

To account for funds allotted by the Law Enforcement Protection Fund, Section 29-13-5, NMSA 1978, to
“enhanced the efficiency and effectiveness of law enforcement service.”

Lodgers’ Tax Fund

To account for revenues collected from occupancy taxes levied within the City boundaries pursuant to
NMSA 3-38-15. Also, funds received from a cooperative advertising grant from the New Mexico
Department of Tourism. Expenditures from this fund may be used for acquiring, constructing, improving,
establishing, and operating convention, exposition or entertainment facilities; equipping and furnishing
such facilities; acquiring or obtaining an interest such facilities; or advertising, publicizing, and promoting
such facilities,

Payroll Fund
To account for payroll funds received and disbursed for the City.
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Retired Senior Volunteer Project Fund (RSVP)

To account for grants received from the State Agency on Aging and Federal government under the
Domestic Volunteer Serviee Act of 1983, as amended, Title II, to provide a varicty of opportunitics for
retired persons (o serve their community through significant volunteer service (Public Law 93-113).

State Mighway — Section 8311

To account for grants veeeived from the State Department of Transportation and Federal government
under the Domestic Volunteer Service Act of 1983, as amended, Title 1T, to provide for the transportation

ol relired persons (Public Law 93-113).

Harvey House Fuad

To account (or an appropriation {rom the Lodgers® Tax Fund to help maintain and renovaic the local
historical museum.

Street Paving Revolving Account Fund

To account lor revenues received (rom the levy of a tax per galion of gasoline purchased within the City
boundarics, pursuant to the County and Municipal Gasoline Tax Act, NMSA 7-21-1. Also, for several
state grants from the New Mexico State Highway Department, for surfacing and improving various
streets. Expenditures from this fund may be used for bridge and road projects on transit routes; for
purchasing, maintaining or operating transit facilities; for operating a transit authority; for operating a
vehicle emissions inspection program; or for road, street or highway construction, repair and maintenance

on transit routes.

Martin Luther Kinp Fund

To account for a State grant for cultural event in relation to the Martin Luther King holiday.
Evidence
To account for unclaimed evidence funds pending litigation needed to be secured.

JAG Grant Fund

To account for grant from the Department of Justice for police department expenditures.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND -
1201 HARVEY HOUSE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Initial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Acmal (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Rental fzes $ - - - -
Total revenues - - - -
Expenditures:

Curent;

Culture and recreation 12,000 12,000 622 11,378
Total expenditures 12,000 12,000 622 11,378
Other financing sources:

Operating transfer in 12,000 12,000 622 11,378

Total other financing uses 12,000 12,000 622 11,378
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

angd other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and

other financing uses $ - - - 22,756

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources 3
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis)

Adjustments:

To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:
Receivables

To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:
Payables and accrued expenses

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing vses (GAAP basis) h)

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MA.JOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - 1202 PARKS & RECREATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDLED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance

Initial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Aclual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:

State shared laxes $ 9,000 9,000 10,290 1,200
(nlerest 200 200 i83 (17)
Other 47,000 72.002 70,729 (1.273)
Total revenues 56.200 81.202 R1.202 .

Expenditures:

Current:

Culture and Recreation 35,800 54.827 54,827 -
Total expenditures 35.800 54,827 54,827 -

Other financing uses:

Operating transfers in - - - -

Operating transfers out (10,000) (10,000) (10.000) -

Total other financing uses (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and

other financing uses h 10,400 16,375 16,375 -
Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

16,375

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources 5
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis)

Adjustments:
To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Receivables
To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:

Payables and accrued expenses

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over

expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) § 16,375

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - 1203 FIRE PROTECTION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Initial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Donation $ - 200,000 200,000 -

State Fire Allotment 84,279 87,980 87,980 -

Interest - 667 667 -
Total revenues 84,279 288,647 288,647 -
Expenditures:

Current:

Public safety 40,106 42716 42716 -
Total expenditures 40,106 42,716 42,716 -
Other financing uses:

Operating transfer in - - - -

Operating transfer out (44,173) (44,173) (45,237) (1,064)

Total other financing uses (44,173) (44,173) (45,237) (1,064)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and

other financing uses h) - 201,728_ 200,694 ] (1,064)
Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements
Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources h 200,694

over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis)

Adjustments:

To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Receivables

To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:
Payables and accrued expenses -

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over

expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) §

200,694

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND -

1204 EMS RESCUE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-MAJOR BUDGETARY BASIS)

Revenues:
State grants
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety
Total expenditures

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Other financing (sources) uses:

Operating transfers in
Operating transfcrs out
Total other financing uscs

Viriance

Trutial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable

$ 9,178 0,184 9.184 -

9,178 9.184 9.184

9.178 10.248 10,248 -

9,178 10,248 10,248 -

- 1,064 1,064 -

- 1,064 1.064 -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and

other financing uses

$ - R

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis)

Adjustments:

To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Recetvables

To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:

Payables and accrued expenses

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND -
1209 JAIL (CORRECTIONS)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
Variance
Initia) Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:

Fines and forfeits $ 61,400 63,998 63,998 -

Other - - - -
Total revenues 61,400 63,998 63,998 -
Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety 68,000 89,561 89,561 -
Total expenditures 68,000 89,561 89,561 -

Other financing (sources) uses:

Operating transfers in - - 33,563 33,563

Operating transfers out (8,000) (8.000) (8,000) -

Total other financing uses (8,000) (8,000) 25,563 33,563
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and

other financing uses 3 (14,600) (33,563) - 33,563

Cash balance, beginning of year § 33,563 33,563 .

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources $ - ¥
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis)

Adjustments:

To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Receivables -
To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments;

Payables and accrued expenses -

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) $ -

See accompanying notes to the financial statements .
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND -
1210 STATE HIGHWAY SECTION 5311
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
Vartance

Initial Final Favorable

Budget Budget Actual (Unlavorable)
Revenues: -
State granl $ 44,872 44,872 (7,043 (27.829)
Other 1.500 {,500 1358 (142)
Tolul revenues 46.372 46372 18,401 (27971
Expenditures:
Current:

Highways and streels 34,265 34265 28,509 5,756
Non- current:

Capital outlay 38.900 38.900 7,942 309358
Total expenditures 73,165 73,165 36,451 36,714
Other financing sources:

Operating transfer in 24,364 24364 18,050 (6,314)

Operating transfer out - - - -

Total other financing sources 24364 24364 18,050 (6,314)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and

other financing uses $ (2,429) (2,429) - 2,429
Cash balance, beginning of year  $ 2,429 2,429

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis) $ -

Adjustroents:
To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Receivables
To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:
Payables and accrued expenses

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) 3 -

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND -
1211 EVIDENCE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Initial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Fines and forfeits h) 500 4,492 4,492 -

Other - 33,172 33,172 -
Total revenues 500 37,664 37,664 -
Expenditures:

Current:

Public safety - 20,072 20,072 -
Total expenditures - 20,072 20,072 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and

other financing uses $ 500 17,592 17,592 -

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis) b 17,592

Adjustments:

To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Receivables -
To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:

Payables and accrued expenses , -

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over

expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) $ 17,592

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND -
1212 LAW ENFORCEMENT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
Variance
Initial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Stale grant ¥ 30.200 30,200 30,200 -
Total revenues 30,200 30,200 30.200 -
Expenditures:
Current:
Public salcly 4.000 5.724 5,724 -
Non-current:

Capital outlay 26,200 24514 24,514 -
Total expenditurcs 30.200 30.238 30,238 -
Other financing sources:

Operating transfer in - - 38 38
Operating transfer out - - - -
Total other financing sources - - 38 38

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and

other financing uses $ - (38) - -
Cash balance, beginning of year § 38 '

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis) b -

Adjustments:
To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Receivables
To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:

Payables and accrued expenses

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) b -
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND -
1213 JAG GRANT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Initial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Federal sources 3 - 6,858 6,858 -
Total revenues - 6,858 6,858 -
Expenditures:

Current:

Geperal government - 2,000 2,000 -

Total expenditures - 2,000 2,000 -

Other financing uses:

Operating transfers in - - - -
Operating transfers out - - - -
Total other financing uses - - - -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses $ - 4,858 4,858 -

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing nses (budgetary basis) § - 4,858

Adjustments:

To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Recervables -
To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:

Payables and accrued expenses -

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) h 4,858

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND -
1215 LODGERS' TAX
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Initiat Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unlavorable
Revenues:
Lodgers® taxes A 80,000 80,000 64,524 (15,476)
Other 5.000 5,000 - (5.000)
Total revenues 85.000 85.000 04,524 (20,476)
Expenditures:
Current:
Geaeral government 35,625 75,652 70.077 5.575
Total expenditures 35,625 75.652 70,077 5,575
Other financing uses:
Operacing transfers in - - 28,931 28,931
Operaung transfers out (42,600) (42,600) (30,600) 12,000
Total other financing uses (42,600} (42,600) (1.669) 40,931
Excess (deficiency) of revenucs
and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses $ 6,775 (33,252) (7.222) 26,030

Cash balance, beginning of ycar $ 54,363 54,363

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis) h) (7,222)

Adjustments:
To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Receivables
To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:

Payables and accrued expenses

6,366

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) b (856)

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND -
1401 MARTIN LUTHER KING
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
Variance

Initial Final Favorable

Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
State sources $ 500 500 214 (286)
Other - - - -
Tota) revenues 500 500 214 (286)
Expenditures:
Current:

General government 1.000 1,000 789 211
Total expenditures 1,000 1.000 789 211
Other financing sources:

Operating transfer in - 500 500 250 (250)

Total other financing sources 500 500 250 (250)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and

other financing uses $ - - (325) (325)
Cash balance, beginning of year § 651

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis) $ (325)

Adjustments:
To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

" Receivables ‘ .

To adjust applicable expenditures and aceruals and payments:
Payables and accrued expenses -

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) $ (325 )

See accompanying notes 1o financial staiements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND -
3801 R.S.V.P.
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
Variance

{nitial Final FFavarable

Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
IFederal geant h S 40,064 40,064 31,072 (R,992)
State sources 14,678 14,678 9,052 (5,626)
Other 17.800 17.800 17.610 (190)
Total revenues 72.542 72.542 57.734 (14,.808)
Expenditures:
Current:

Health & wellare 147,214 147214 L41,046 6,168
Totat expenditures 147,214 147,214 141,046 6,168
Other financing sources:

Operating transfer in 73.850 81.608 81.607 (1)

Total other ftnancing sources 73.850 81.608 81.607 H
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and

other financing uses $ (822) 6.936 (1,705) (8.641)
Cash balance, beginning of year § 822 1,705

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis) b (1,705)

Adjustments:
To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Receivables
To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:
Payables and accrued expenses

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) $ (1,705)

See accompariying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND -
4908 PAYROLL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
Variance

Initial Final Favorable

Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Earnings from investments $ - 2,580 1,616 (964)
Total revenues - 2,580 1,616 (964)
Expenditures:
Current:

General government - 50 50 -
Total expenditures - 50 50 -
Other financing sources:

Operating transfer in - - - -

Total other financing uses - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and

other financing uses $ - 2,530 1,566 (964)

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis) A 1,566

Adjustments:

To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Receivables : -
To adjust applicable expenditures and accrnals and payments:

Payables and accrued expenses -

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over

expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) $ 1,566

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
RUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
4909 SPECIAL REVENUE - STREET PAVING REVOLVING
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2607

Variance
Initial final Favorable
Budget Budpet Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Gas taxes $ 282,891 282,891 220433 (62.458)
Highway Co-op 111,654 111.654 111,654 -
State DOP-MAP - - - -
Other - - 495 495
Total revemies 394,545 304,545 332,582 {61.963)
Expenditures:
Current:
Highways and streets 25,000 25,000 23.625 1375
Non current:

Capital outfay 166.846 166.846 122,101 44,745
Total expenditures 191.846 191.846 145,726 46,120
Other financing (sources) uses:

Operating transfer in - - - -

Operating transfer out (186.175) (186.180) (186.180) B

Total other financing uses (186.175) (186.180) (186,180) =

Excess (deficiency) of revenues, and
Other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financin; § 16.524 16,519 676 (15.843)

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures and other ftnancing uses (budgetary basis) $ 676

Adjustments:
To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Receivables
To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:
Payables and accrued expenses

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) $ 676

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS - 1801 BECKER AVENUE ENHANCEMENT PROJECT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 .
Variance
Initial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

State sources 3 505,000 505,000 473,500 (31,500)
Total revenues 505,000 505,000 473,500 (31,500)
Expenditures:

Cwrent:
Highways and streets - - - -
Non-current:
Capital outlay 2,324,515 2,324,515 1,644,695 679,820
Total expenditures 2,324,515 2,324,515 1,644,695 679,820
Excess (deficiency) of revennes
over expenditures (1,819,515) (1,819,515) (1,171,195) 648,320
Other financing (sources) uses:
Operating transfer in 1,819,515 1,819,515 1,388,215 (431,300)
Operating transfer out - - - -
Total other financing uses 1,819,515 1,819,515 1,388,215 (431,300)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues, and
Other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing (uses’ $ - - 217,020 217,020

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis) $ 217,020

Adjustments:

To adjust applicable revenue aceruals and deferrals:

Receivables -
To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:

Payables and accrued expenses , -

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over :
expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) -$ 217,020
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1

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Airport lmprovements

To account for a grant [rom the FAA through the NMSH&TD for the renovation of the City's aicport
facility.

C.D.B.G.

To account for a federal C.D.B.G. grant for the purpose of providing cxicensions and roadway
improvements to Gonzales Road. Authority is Title [ of the Housing and Commuaity Development Act

and 1974 Public Law 93-383.

Multi-Purpose Reereation Mark

To account for an appropriation for the State egistature, Special Appropriations Project, Law of 1999,
lor the costs of planning, designing, cquipping, and constructing a multiple sports and ouldoor
recrcational complex.

Library Renovalion

To account for appropriation from the state legislature and funding from the New Mexico ffinance
Authority lor the renovation of the City’s library.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

AS OF JUNE 30, 2007
1206 1214 1217 4913
Multi- Alirport Library C.D.B.G.
Purpose Improvements Renovation 2004 Total
Assets
Cash on deposit $ 58,189 20,628 159,799 504 239,120
Receivables - 26,838 - - 26,838
Total assets $_ 58,189 47,466 159,799 504 265,958
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - 26,889 282,117 - 309,006
Total liabilities - - 26,889 282,117 - 305,006
Fund Balance:
Unreserved: Designated
for subsequent year's expenditures 58,189 20,577 (122,318) 504 (43,048)
Total fund balance 58,189 20,577  (122,318) 504  (43,048)
Total liabilities and fund balance:§__58,189 47,466 159,799 504 265,958

See accompanying notes t0 the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
AS OF JUNE 30, 2007

1206 1214 1217 4913
Multi- Alirport Library  C.D.B.G.
Purpose Project  Renovation 2004 Total
Revenues
State grants ¥ 455,849 85,082 841,748 1,382,679
[Federal grants - 835,033 - 835,033
Other - - 600 600
Total revenues 455,849 920,115 842,348 - 2218312
Expenditures
Non-current:
Capital outlay 397.660 940,146 964,666 2.302,472
Total expenditures 397,660 040,146 964,666 - 2,302,472
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 58,189 (20,031)  (122,318) - (84,160)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers out (186) - - - (186)
Total other financing sources (uses) (186) - - - (186)
Net change in fund balance 58,003 (20,031)  (122,318) - (84,346)
Fund balance - beginning of the year 186 40,608 - 504 41,298
Fund batance - end of year § 58,189 20,577 (122,318) 504 (43,048)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - 1206 MULTI-PURPOSE REC'N PARK
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Initial Final Favorable
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
State sources $ 2,250,000 2,334,730 455,849 (1,878,881)
Total revenues 2,250,000 2,334,730 455,849 (1,878,881)
Expenditures:
Non-current:
Capital outlay 2,250,000 2,250,000 397,660 1,852,340
Total expenditures 2,250,000 2,250,000 397,660 1,852,340
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfer in - - - -
Operating transfer out - (186) (186) -
Total other financing uses - (186) (186) -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses $ - 84,730 58,003 (26,541)

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis) $ 58,003

Adjustments:

To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Receivables -
To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:

Payables and accrued expenses -

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) $ 58,003

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - 1214 AIRPORT
STATEMENT OF REVNUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 3@, 2007
Variance
Initial Final [Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Local sources $ 37,549 37,549 - (31.549)
Slate sources 37,549 93,602 85.082 (8.520)
IFederal sources 1.470.451 1,470,451 835.033 {635.418)
Total revenues 1.545.549 1.601.602 920.115 (6G81.487)
Expenditures:
Non-current:
Capital outlay 1.482.728 1.506,778 913.257 593.521
Total expenditures 1.482.728 1,506,778 913,257 593.521
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing
sources {uscs) - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other firancing sources
over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses b 62.821 94,824 6.858 (87.966)

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis) $ 6,858
Adjustments:

To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Receivables -
To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:

Payables and accrued expenses (26,889)
Excess of revenues and other financing sources over

expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) § (20,031)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - 1217 LIBRARY RENOVATION

STATEMENT OF REVNUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

| YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
Vaniance
Initial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
State sources § 1,405,250 1,405,250 841,748 (563,502)
Other - 600 600 -
Total revenues 1,405,250 1,405,850 842,348 (563,502)
Expenditures:
Non-current:
Capital outlay 1,405,250 1,455,312 682,549 772,763
Total expenditures 1,405,250 1,455,312 682,549 772,763
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - - - -
— Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing
sources (uses) - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and
other ﬁngncing uses h) - (49,462) 159,799 209,261
Cash balance, beginning of year  § 49,462

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
= over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis) § 159,799

Adjustments:

To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Receivables -
To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:

Payables and accrued expenses (282,117)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over

expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) : $ (122,318)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
65



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - 4913 CDBG PROJECT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2007
Variance
[nitial Final Favorablce
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorablc)
ChBG grant $ 250,000 250,000 (250.,000)
Total revenues 250,000 250,000 - (250.000)
Expenditures:
Noa-current:
Capital outlay - - - -
Total expenditures - - - -
Other ftnancing (sources) uses:
Operating transfer in - - - -
Operating transfer out - - - -
Total other financing uses - - . -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses $ 250,000 250.000 - (250,000)

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis) L3 -

Adjustments:
To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Receivables
To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:
Payables and accrued expenses

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) $ -

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

66



NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service Fund (4904)

To account for the resources accumulated and payments made for the principal and ioterest on general
long-term debt for governmental funds.

Gas Tax Revenue Bond (4905)

To provide funds for defraying the cost of refunding, paying, discharging and liquidating the City’s
outstanding lease purchase agreement with First Capital Group, Inc. and acquiring, repairing, and
otherwise improving municipal building and land.

GRT Revenue Bond (4906)

To provide funds for defraying the cost of refinancing the outstanding City of Belen Gross Receipts Tax
Revenue Bonds, series 1997 and City of Belen Gross Receipts Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1998,
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30, 2007
4904 4905
Debt Cias Tax
Service Rev, Bond Rev. Bond Total
Assels
Cash on deposit $ 285004 5 96 285,105
Citsh reserved 359.365 - 456 359,821
Total assels $ 644.369 5 552 644 926
Liabilities
Accounts payable § - - - -
Total liabilities - - - -
Fund Balance:

Reserved 359,365 - 456 359,821

Unreserved: Designated
for subsequent yeat's expenditures 285,004 5 96 285,105
Total fund balance 644,369 5 552 644,926
Total liabilities and fund balance 3 644.369 5 552 644,926

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
AS OF JUNE 30, 2007

4904 4905 4506
Debt Gas Tax GRT
Service Rev. Bond Rev. Bond Total
Revenues
Eamnings from investments $ 36,927 - 38 36,965
Total revenues 36,927 - 38 36,965
Expenditures
Current:
Other operating expenses 14,245 - 3,000 17,245
Non-current:
Debt service:
Principal 431,772 145,000 300,000 876,772
Loan interest payment 325,705 41,175 169,480 536,360
Debt issuance costs - - - -
Total expenditures 771,722 186,175 472,480 1,430,377
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (734,795) (186,175) (472,442) (1,393,412)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 772,173 186,180 472,480 1,430,833
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 772,173 186,180 472,480 1,430,833
Net change in fund balance 37,378 5 38 37,421
Fund balance - beginning of the year 606,991 - 514 607,505
Fund balance - end of year $ 644369 5 552 644,926

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
MA.JOR DEBT SERVICE FUND - 4904 DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Initial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Ciross receipts lax 1/2 3 - - - -
Interest income - - - -
farnings froni investiuents - - 36,927 36,927
ILocal sources - - - -
- - 36,927 36,927
Fxpenditures:
Cureent:
General and administrative 13,745 14,245 14245 -
Other - - - -
Non-cutrent: -
Principal 431,772 431,772 431,772 -
Inlerest 339.160 339,160 325,705 13455
Total expenditures 784,677 785.177 771,722 13,455
Other financing sources;
Operating transfer in 784,678 784,678 772,173 (12,505)
Operating transfer out - - - -
Tolal other financing sources 784.678 784.678 772,173 (12.505)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses ¥ 1 (499) 37,378 37.877
Cash balance, beginning of year $ , 606,991
Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements
Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis) $ 37,378
Adjustments:
To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:
Receivables -
To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:
Payables and accrued expenses -
Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis) b 37378

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND - 4905 GAS TAX REVENUE BOND
STATEMENT OF REVNUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
Variance
Initial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Acrual (Unfavorable)
Expenditures:
Non-current:
Loan principal payment 145,000 145,000 145,000 -
Loan interest payment 41,175 41175 41,175 -
Total expenditures 186,175 186,175 186,175 -
Other financing sources (nses)
Transfers in 186,175 186,175 186,180 5
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing
sources (uses) 186.175 186,175 186,180 5
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses $ - - 5 5

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis) ' 3 5

Adjustments:

To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:’

Receivables

To adjust applicable expenditures and accruals and payments:
Payables and accrued expenses -

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing nses (GAAP basts) b3 5

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND - 4506 GRT REVENUE BOND

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN

STATEMENT OF REVNUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

Revenues
Deht service income
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Olher operaling expenses
Non-current:
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing
sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses

Cash balance, beginning of year

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary basis)

Adjustments:

To adjust applicable revenue accruals and deferrals:

Receivables

To adjust applicable expenditures and accrvals and payments:

Payables and accrued expenses

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP basis)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
Variance
Initial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
- 38 38 .
3R 38 -
4.000 4,000 3.000 (. 000
305,000 300.000 300,000 -
90.840 169.480 169.480 -
399.840 473,480 472.480 1.000
399.840 472,480 472,480 -
399 840 472480 472 480 -
- (962) 38 1,000
12,828
38
38
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ENTERPRISE FUND DEPARTMENTS

Water Department (Funds 2602,2603,2605)
To account for the operations of the City’s water department and meter deposits.

Solid Waste Department (Fund 2604)
To account for the City’s landfill closure costs and cost of solid waste disposal.

Wastewater Department (Funds 2601,2606,2607,2608)
To account for the sewer department.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF BELEN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
2601 WASTEWATER DEPARTMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Revenues
Sales and services
Stale sources
Miscellancous revenue
Tolal operating revenues

Expenditures
Operating:
General and administrative
Non-operating:
Capital Outlay
Total operating expenses

Other financing sources (uses)
Gross receipts tax
Interest
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

and other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses

Cash balance, beginning of year

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Vanance

Tnitial Final Favorable
Budgcel Budget Actual (Untavorable)
$ 636,672 831,705 831,851 146
- 18,891 18.891 -
- 16,165 16,165 -
636,672 866,761 866,907 {46
669,606 669,606 625,881 43,725
34,550 34,550 - 34,550
704,156 704,156 625,881 78,275
. - 200 200
- - 4,071 4,071
- - 38,690 38,690
(59,525) (179,520) (197,432) (17.912)
(59,525) (179,520) (154,471) 25,049
(127,009) (16,915) 86,555 103,470
$ 163,235 163,235
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

Reveoues
Sales and services
Miscellanegus revenue
Total operating revenues

Expendijtures
Operating:
General and adminismative
Non-operating:
Capital outlay
Total operating expenses

Other finauncing sonrces (uses)
Gross receipts tax
Interest
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financmmg sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
and other fmancing sources over (under)

expenditures and other financing uses

Cash balance, beginning of year

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

$

$

$

2602 WATER DEPARTMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

$

Variance
Initial Fina) Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
1,091,436 1,218,946 1,200,969 (17,977)
3,000 3.000 1,862 (1,138)
1,094,436 1.221,946 1.202.831 (19,115)
1,157,576 1,144,625 1,124,726 19,899
50,500 63,451 63,451 -
1,208,076 1,208,076 1,188,177 19,859
119,765 119,765 144,386 24,621
5,000 5,000 8,195 3,195
- - 224,755 224,755
(76,025) (195,868) (251,705) (55.837)
48,740 (71,103) 125,631 196,734
{64,900) (57,233) 140,285 197,518
250,282 250,282
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CITY OF BELEN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
2603 METER DEPOSITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
tuitial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unlavorable)
Revenues
Deposils k) - - - -

Total opcrating revenues = -

Expenditures
Operating:
Geaceral and adiministrative - -
Non-opcrating:
Capital outlay - .

Total operating expenses -

Other financing sources (uscs)
Gross receipts tax - -
[nterest - 1,735 1,735
Transfers in -
Transfers out -

Total other financing sources (uses) $ - 1,735 1,735

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
and other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses $ - 1,735 1,735

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF BELEN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
2604 SOLID WASTE DEPARTMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Inihal Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Sales and services $ 1,078,842 1,155,758 1,151,740 (4,018)
Miscellaneous revenue 3,000 4,450 4,450 -
Tota] operating revenues 1,081,842 1,160,208 1,156,190 (4,018)
Expenditures
Operating:
Gerneral and administrative 91,655 92,750 92,750 -
Other operating expenses 1,059,800 1,058,705 1,043,175 15,530
Capital outlay 60,000 60,000 40,623 16,377
Total operating expenses 1,151,455 1,151,455 1,176,548 . 34,907
Otber financing sources (uses)
Gross receipts tax 125,068 130,221 130,221 -
Interest - - 4,018 4,018
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 125,068 130,221 134,239 4,018
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
and other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses 55,455 138,974 113,881 34,907

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
2605 .JOINT UTILITY DEBT SERVICE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Initial [Final Favorable
Budget Budgel Actwal  (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Local sources $ 33.000 37,528 14,634 (2.894)
Total operating revenues 33.000 37.528 34.634 (2.894)
Expenditures
Non-opcrating:
Principal payments 74,000 74,000 94,000 (20,000)
Interest payments 76,791 76,791 78.806 (2,0t5)
Total operating expenses 150,791 150,791 172,806 (22,015)
Other financing sources (uses)
Gross receipts tax - - - -
Interest - - 2,895 2,895
Transfers in 135,550 135,550 135,388 (162)
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 135,550 135,550 138,283 2,733
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
and other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses 17,759 22,287 11 (22,176)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
2606 ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT LOAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Initial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual  (Unfavorable)
Revenunes
State sources $ - - - -

Total operating revenues - - - -

Expenditures
Non-operating:
Principal payments - - - -
Interest payments - - - R

Total operating expenses - . - -

Other financing sources (uses)

Gross receipts tax - - - -
Interest - 440 440 -
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) - 440 440 -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
and other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses - 440 440 -

See accompanying aotes to the financial statements

79



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURLES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
2607 WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
nitial Final FFavorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unlavorable)
Revenues
Federal sources ¥ - 78,627 78.627 -
Slate sources - 1,382 1,382 -
Miscellancous revenue - 450 450 -
Total opecrating revenues - 80.459 80,459 -
Expenditures
Non-operating:
Capital Outlay 53,126 53,126 16,081 37,045
Total operating expenses 53,126 53,126 16,081 37,045
Other financing sources (uses)
Gross recelpts tax - - - -
Interest - 2,211 2,211 -
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - 2,211 2,211 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
and other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses (53,126) 29,544 66,589 . 37,045

Cash balance, beginning of year $ 67,659

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF BELEN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
2608 WATER WELL #4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Variance
Injtial Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
State sources $ 797,140 797,140 82,160 (714,980)
Local sources 150,000 150,000 - (150,000)
Miscellaneous revenue - - - -
o Total operating revennes 947,140 947,140 82,160 (864,980)
Expenditures
Non-operating;
Capital Outlay 1,453,131 1,453,131 82,160 1,370,971
Total operating expenses 1,453,131 1,453,131 82,160 1,370,971
3 Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in - - - -

Transfers out - - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -

: Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
— and other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing nses (505,991) (505,991) - 505,991
Cash balance, beginning of year $ 505,991 505,991



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF BELEN
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2067

Iederal Grantor/Cass ‘Chroagh
Grajnor/Progrinm Title
Mitjor Progriems:

Departiment of Teanspor(ation (FAA)
Bele Airtield lmprovemients

Departiment of Flomelowd Scetriny (I18)
Hazawd Mitigation Grant

‘ol major progrim

Non-Mujor Programs:

U.S. Depeniment of Lealth and Human Services

Pagsed throngh the NM Depaciment Arca agency on Aging
Retired and Senior Volunteer Program

(J.S. Department of Transportation
Pass through NM Department of Transportation
Section S311

U.S. Department of Homeland Security (FEMA)
Pass through NM Emergency Management

U.S. Environment Protection Ageacy

Pass through NM Environment Department
Wastewater Phase |

Wastewater Phase 11

U.S. Department of Transportation

Pags through NM Department of Transportation
Operation Seat Belt

Operation DWI

Total non-major programs

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
1. Basis of Accounting

Grant/Pays-
CFDA Through Federal

Number il Expenditures
20.106  3-35-0006-07-2006 b K33.013
97.019 1659-NM 539.69%6
137:1.729

94.002  02SRWNMO005 40.064
20.509  MO00498 16,038
85.554  2006-EM-E6-0015-VALE 29415
66.606  STAG XP-976702-01 2211
66.606  STAG XP-96637801-0 12,488
20.602  05-OP-RF-007 8,550
20.601  05-AL-64-007 6,360

115,066

$__1480.795

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards was prepared using the modified accrual method of
accouating. This is the same basis as was used to prepare the financial statements.

2. Non-Cash Assistance

The City did not receive any federal awards in the form of non-cash assistance during the year.

3. Subrecipients

The City did not provide any federal awards to subrecipients during the year.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Hinkle & Landers, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

3500-C Comeanche NE
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87107
Tele (505) 883-8788

Fax (503) 883-8797

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING

STANDARDS.

Mr. Hector M. Balderas,

New Mexico State Auditor
and

Honorable Mayor and Council
City of Belen

Belen, New Mexico

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business type
activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information which comprise the basic
financial statements, the budgetary comparisons for the general fund, major special revenue
funds, and the combining and individual funds presented as supplemental information of the City
of Belen as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, and have issued our report thereon dated
March 18, 2008. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Belen’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designating our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Belen’s internal conirol over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinjon on the effectiveness of the City of Belen’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would pot necessarily identify all deficiencies or
material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not aliow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
musstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or a
combination of control deficiencies that adversely affects the entity’s ability to initiate, authonze,
record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted
accounting pnnciples such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the
entity’s financial staterrients that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected
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by the City of Belen’s internal control. We consider the deficicncies described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be significant deficiencics in internal
control over financial reporting. 04-07, 05-01, 07-02.

A maicerial weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficicncics, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial stalcments

will not be prevented or detected by the agency’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purposc
described in the first pavagraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficicncics
in the inleral control that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not
necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also deficiencics described ubove is a
material weakness. However, of the significant deficiencies described above, we consider items-

04-07, 05-0t, 07-02 Lo be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Qther Matters

As parl of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Belen’s financial statements are
free of material misstatements, we pecformed tests ol its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncomphiance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. FHowever,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned

costs as items 01-04 and 07-01.

We noted certain matters that are required o be reported under Government Auditing Standards
January 2007 Revision paragraphs 5.14 and 5.16, and Section 12-6-5, NMSA 1978, which are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as findings 01-04.

The agency’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s response and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it. :

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, management, the City
Council, the New Mexico Legislature, the Office of the State Auditor and the New Mexico
Department of Finance and Administration and federal awarding agencies and pass through
grantors and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified

parties.

WYZAJ V74

Hinkle & Landers, P.C.
March 18, 2008
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Hinkle & Landers, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONS ULTANTS

3500-C Comanche NE
Albuquergue, New Mexico 87107
Tele (505) B83-8788

Fax (505) 883-8797

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Mr. Hector M. Balderas

New Mexico State Auditor
angd

Honorable Mayor and Council
City of Belen

Belen, New Mexico

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of City of Belen, with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2007.
The City of Belen’s major federal programs are identified in the suramary of anditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questions costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal
program 1is the responsibility of City of Belen's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on City of Belen’s compliance based on our andit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB_Circular A-133. Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Oreganizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Belen’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on City of Belen’s compliance with
those requirements.
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{n our opinion, the Cily of Belen complied in all material respects, with the requirements referred
lo above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year cnded June 30,
2007.

lnlernal Conivol Qver Compliance

The management of the City of Belen is responsible for establishing and maintaining c(lective
intcrnal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracls and granis
applicable to federal programs. (n planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of
Belen’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direel and material
cllect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures (or the purpose
ol expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
cffectiveness of internal control over compliance, and accordingly we do not cxpress an opinion
on the cffectiveness of the City’s tnternal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in an eatity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control does not allow management or employecs, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
control deficiency or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s
ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of 2 federal program that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detecied by the entity’s internal

contral.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as

defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, management, the City
Council, Legislative Finance Committee, the New Mexico Legislature, New Mexico Department
of Finance and Administration, the State Auditor, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified

parties.

WY do@, V7%

Hinkle & Landers, P.C.
March 18, 2008
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

SECTIONI ~- SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

1dentification of major program as noted below:
Financial Statements
Type of auditors' report issued Unqualified
Internal Control over financial reporting:
Meterial weaknesses identified? X _ Yes No

Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? X Yes No

- Non-compliance material to financial statements noted? X Yes No
Federal Awards
Internal Control
Material weaknesses identified? Yes XNo
= Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes Xno

Type of auditors’ report issued on major programs Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 1o be
reported in accordance with section 510(g) of Circular A-1337 - Yes XN

CFDA Numbers
Funding Source Name of Federal Programs Funding Source
U.S. Department of
20.106 * Airport Improvements Transportation (FAA)
} U.S. Department of Homeland
57.03% . * Hazard Mitigation Grant Security

Dollar threshold use to distinguish between
A and B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No
*Major Program
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

SECTION L AND 111- FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS

Status of
Current and PFinancial Federal
Prior Year Statement Awards
Findinps Finding Finding

Findinpg

01-04 LATE AUDIT REPORT Modificd yes no
04-03 LACK OF CONSISTENCY IN THE ACCOUNT CODING Resolved yes no
04-07 CASH BALANCUS Repeated yes no
04-17 CAPITAL ASSCETS ANNUAL INVENTORY Resolved yes no
05-01 MONITORING OFf CASH AND DEBT SERVICE FOR LANDFILL Repeated yes no
05-04 TRAVEL FORM SIGNATURES Repeated yes no
05-09 WIRE TRANSEERS OUT OF BANK ACCOUNTS Resolved yes no
07-01 ACTUAL EXPENDITURES EXCEED BUDGET EXPENDITURES Cuorrent yes no
17-02 CONTROLS OVER MAINTAINING THE GENERAL LEDGER Current yes no
07-03 CONSTRUCTION [N PROGRESS Current yes no

01-04 LATE AUDIT REPORT-Madified

Statement of Condition:
The annual financial and compliance audit for the year ending June 30, 2007 was not conducted within

the time limit imposed by the State of New Mexico guidelines or requirement for the Conducting of
Audits. The Office of the State Auditor received this audit ceport on April 1, 2008,

Criferia:
The requirements set lorth in the New Mexico State Auditors’ Rule 2 NMAC 2.2 require that the financial

and compliance audit be conducted and completed within five months of the City’s fiscal year end which
was December 1, 2007. The report was not submitted until April |, 2008.

Effect:
The financial and compliance audit is a statute requirement. Failure to have a completed audit by the

stipulated date may jeopardize the City’s eligibility for funding from the State Legislature and Federal
agencies.

Cause:
During the course of the audit, the auditor found federal award amounts that had not been listed by the

City and were subject to single audit procedures. The information that the auditor required was not
provided until after the December | deadline.

Recommendation:
The auditor and auditee must coordinate the timing of the audit in the future to meet the December 1

deadline.

Management Response:

The City of Belen has made every attempt to provide the auditors with any information that has been
requested. Failure to provide information is not intentional but may be an oversight or lack of
communication. Also, if a federal grant was not in the “schedule of grant awards” did not necessarily
mean that it was not in the financial documents. This was discussed with the auditor and all have agreed

to coordinate and follow a time schedule to meet the required deadline.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

04-07 CASH BALANCES — Modified

Statement of Condition:
The cash balances at the fund level were incorrect, and audit adjustments were required, although the

overall cash balance was not correct. Also, the overall cash in the general ledger exceeded the reconciled
bank balance and petty cash by $368,752 due io incorrect cash allocations. Auditors made adjustments to
correct cash.

Criteria:
The cash balances with consideration to the outstanding checks and deposits should reconcile to the bank

statement at the fund Jevel.

Effect:
The cash balances are not accurate at the fund level and were overstated before adjustments.

Cauge:
Adjustunents made by Caselle (City of Belen’s software company) were not reviewed before being posted
by the responsible staff.

Recommendation:
The City should review all the adjustments before being posted to make sure that the balances would be

correct after the adjustments.

Management Response:

When the City obtained Caselle software, the staff reconciled every bank account just like they are doing
today. However, in the course of the years the postings in the Payroll Account were changed to reflect
liabilities instead of expenses. Since then it has “thrown off” the balances. Several attempts have been
made 1o correct this through Caselle and current and previous auditors but to no avail. Our suggestion is
to key in entries through the expense line items instead of liabilities. Caselle has a new update and the
City hopes that it will enbance the software enough to rectify this problem.

05-01 MONITORING OF CASH AND DEBT SERVICE FOR LANDFILL

Statement of Condition:

The City is involved in a joint powers agreement with the Village of Los Lunas that provides for
the disposition of solid waste in compliance with the New Mexico Solid Waste Act. The Village
of Los Lunas is the fiscal agent for the joint powers agreement.

The City of Belen does not receive periodic statements from the Village of Los Lunas regarding
their debt service nor their cash balances. Therefore, there is a lack of monitoring and proper
recording of the debt service transactions and there is no cash reconciliation taking place.

Criteria:

Good accounnting procedures require the implementation of sufficient intemal controls such as
reconciliations and monitoring of transactions and balances of cash and debt that are handled by
a fiscal agent.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
SCITEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Efect:
The City is not properly recording and monttoring its cash and debt service transactions/balances

held by the Village of Los Lunas and the City’s liabilities may be understated.

Cansc:

The may nol bave considered it necessary.

Reconmmendation:

The City should require the Village of Los Lunas lo send them periodic stalements of the
transactions taking place in the joint venture so the City can reconcile and monitor the activity of
its cash and debt service to the statements.

Management response:

The stalT has aggressively contacted the Village of Los Lunas and requested statements (rom
them. We have reccived very few. This item will be followed up through the City Manager.

(5-04 TRAVEL FORM SIGNATURES, SUPPORT AND PAYMENTS

Statement of Condition:
Out of ten travel vouchers tested, there was one instance in which the travel form was not signed

by the supervisor or recipient, one instance werc the receipts could not be located and travel to
Seattle although not listed a special rate area was paid at the higher rate.

Criteria:
Per DFA Rule 95-1 “Per Diem and Mileage Act” Travel should be properly approved and

authorized, supporting receipts submitted and proper rates paid in accordance with approved
guidelines.

Effect:
The City is not in compliance with DFA Rule 95-1. The City may be paying vnallowable costs.

Cause:
The City is not following the guidelines for per diem and mileage Act.

Recommendation:
The City should make sure that a travel forms are properly signed by both the recipient and the

supervisor, require submission of receipts and pay proper approved rates.

Management response:

The staff makes every attempt to make sure that all required documents are attached to the
reimbursements as well as executed.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF BELEN
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

07-01 ACTUAL EXPENDITURES EXCEED BUDGET EXPENDITURES

Statement of Condition:
Actual expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures within a category for in the following funds

for the following amounts:

Special Revenue Fund—Infrastructure GRT 1/8 (Fund 1205) in the expenditure category:
General government: Capital outlay. ($801,807)

Proprietary Fund-Joint Utility Debt Service in the expenditure categornies:

Non-operating: Principal payments ($20,000) and Interest payments ($2,015)

Cnteria:

In accordance with the State Auditor Rule 2.2.2.10 “Appropriations to Agencies” The budgetary
comparison presented in the financial statements must be at least at the same appropriation level
as the approved budget to demonstrate compliance with legal requirements. If actual
expenditures exceed budgeted expenditures at the legal level of budgetary compliance, that fact
must be reported in a finding. If budgeted expenditures exceed budgeted revenues (after prior-
year cash balance and any applicable federal receivables required to balance the budget), that
fact must also be reported in a finding. If the agency budgets cash or fund balance that did not
exist at the beginning of the fiscal year, a finding should be reported.

Effect:
Budgetary controls are circumvented and Department of Finance and Administration regulations

are violated.

Cause:
It appears to be lack of monitoring of the City’s departments for possible budget overruns.

Recommendation: .
Management should review the financial statements periodically for possible overruns and
request appropriate budgetary increases before expenditures exceed budget.

Management Response:

The staff will make every attempt to review the financials for any overruns with their designated
department head. Any over expenditure will require a budget adjustment.

07-02 CONTROLS OVER MAINTAINING THE GENERAL LEDGER AND AUDIT REPORT

Statement of Condition
During our audit we made several adjustments to the City’s books that the new SAS 112 requires to

report as a finding.

Criteria
Statement of Auditing Standards (SAS) 112 was implemented as of December 15, 2006. Some of the key
underlying concepts of this standard follow. Also since significant adjustments to the financials were
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made it calls into question whether the City staff has the qualifications and training to apply peoerally
aceepled accounting principles in recording the entity’s financial transactions or preparing its linancial
stacents.

e The auditor cannot be part of a client’s internal control. Becoming part of & client’s iniernal
control impairs the anditor’s independence.

e What the anditor docs is independent of the client’s internal control over lnancial reporting.
Therelore, the auditor cannot be a compensating control for the client,

s A system ol internal control over the financial reporting does not stop at the gencral ledger; raiher
it includes controts over the preparation of the financial statements,

Recording these adjustments is considered a significant process that the client needs o maintain.

Effect
Because these adjustments were made by the auditor and not by the City, it results in an internal control
weakness in maintaining the general ledger and wouald extend to the audit report.

Canse
The implementation of SAS 112, which requires the auditor to reconsider the design and processes

needed to be implemented and executed by the auditee and carry them forward to the financial statements
is the cause of this finding as in previous years these adjustments would not be considered a cause for a

finding.

Recommendation
We recommend that the City make adjustments to their general ledger in a timely manner. Asking for

technical advice from the auditor or from someone else when these adjustments are needed is not
considered a control deficiency as long as the staff of the City makes the adjustment and understands how
and why the adjustments were made and. also demonstrate the qualifications and training to present the

financial statements according to generally accepted accounting principles..

Manacement Response:

Management plans to work with the auditors to determine the necessary adjustments to record in the
City’s financial records.

07-03 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Statement of Condition:
The City is not recording comstruction in progress in its schedule of capital assets. The City provided

only a typewritten list with amounts that did not match construction in progress expenditures in the
different funds. The total amount of construction in progress at June 30, 2007 was $5,242,543. The

auditor made the appropriate adjustments.
Criteria:

GASB 34 requires government entities to present all capital assets including construction in
progress in its government-wide financial statements.
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Effect:
The City has not recorded its construction in progress expenditures in its schedule of capital

assets for the current fiscal year, The City’s capital assets may be understated.

Cause:
The City may not have considered it necessary.

Recommendation:
The City should keep accurate records of its construction in progress and record the amounts in it

fixed asset schedules at the correct amounts.

Management response:

Management plans to work with the auditors to determine pecessary steps for recording
construction 1n progress in its schedule of capital assets.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARATION

‘The Nnancial statements were primarily prepared from the original books and records of the City
as of June 30, 2007 by Hinkle & Landers, PC. The City is responsibic for the (inancial

slatements conlained herein,

EXIT CONFERENCE

An cxit conference was held at the City on March 18, 2008 in a closed mecting to preserve the
confidentiality ol the inlormation in the audit reporl. Attending the meeting were Lhe [ollowing:

Citv of Belen Officials

Mr. Ronnic Torres Mayor
Ms. Sally Garley City Manager
Ms. Mildred Garley Finance Officer

Hinkle & Landers PC Officials

Farley Vener, CPA, CFE
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